
MEETING: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
AND HEALTH)

DATE: Tuesday, 22nd June 2021

TIME: 6.30 p.m.

VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle

Member

Councillor

Substitute

Councillor
Cllr. Carla Thomas (Chair)
Cllr. Greg Myers (Vice-Chair)
Cllr. Iain Brodie - Browne
Labour Vacancy
Cllr. Linda Cluskey
Cllr. Sean Halsall
Cllr. David Irving
Cllr. Terry Jones
Cllr. John Joseph Kelly
Cllr. Nina Killen
Brian Clark, Healthwatch
Roger Hutchings, Healthwatch

Cllr. Anne Thompson
Cllr. Robert Brennan
Cllr. Dr. John Pugh
Cllr. Christine Maher
Cllr. Andrew Wilson
Cllr. Michael Roche
Cllr. Maria Bennett
Cllr. Joe Riley
Cllr. Paul Tweed
Cllr. Veronica Webster

COMMITTEE OFFICER: Debbie Campbell, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

Telephone: 0151 934 2254
Fax: 0151 934 2034
E-mail: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision.

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 12)
Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2021

4.  Current Challenges Faced by Dentistry in Light of the 
Covid 19 Pandemic

(Pages 13 - 
14)

Report of the Head of Primary Care, NHS England and NHS 
Improvement (NHSEI)

5.  Access to General Practice and NHS 111 Services During 
the COVID-19 Pandemic

(Pages 15 - 
18)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group

6.  Phase 2 Clinical Integration of Haemato-Oncology 
Services in North Merseyside

(Pages 19 - 
28)

Report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group

7.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report (Pages 29 - 
38)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group



8.  Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider 
Performance Dashboard

(Pages 39 - 
46)

Joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group

9.  Cabinet Member Reports (Pages 47 - 
62)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer

10.  Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan (Pages 63 - 
86)

Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL IN”.

21

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

REMOTE MEETING HELD ON 
TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

PRESENT: Councillor Doyle (in the Chair)
Councillor Roscoe (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors Carr, Cluskey, Howard, Myers, Pugh and 
Waterfield

ALSO PRESENT: Mr. B. Clark, Healthwatch Representative
Mr. R. Hutchings, Healthwatch Representative
Councillor Cummins, Cabinet Member – Adult Social 
Care
Councillor Moncur, Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing

30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Irving and his 
Substitute Councillor O’Hanlon.

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Paragraph 9 of the Council’s Code of Conduct, the 
following declarations of personal interests were made, and the Members 
concerned remained in the meeting during the consideration of the items:

Member Minute No. Nature of Interest

Councillor 
Roscoe

Minute No. 35 - 
Integrated 
Commissioning 
Update

She is employed by Asthma UK 
and the British Lung Foundation.

Councillor Carr Minute No. 36 – 
Reconfiguration of 
Spinal Surgery 
Services in 
Cheshire and 
Merseyside

He is the Sefton Council 
representative to the Liverpool 
University Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust University 
Hospital Council of Governors.

32. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 5 January 2021, be confirmed as 
a correct record.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

22

33. MERSEY CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - LOW SECURE 
UNIT NEW BUILD PROJECT, MAGHULL HEALTH PARK 

The Committee considered the report submitted by Mersey Care NHS 
Foundation Trust (MCFT) that provided an update on the proposals to 
develop the Maghull Health Park by building a low secure unit (LSU) within 
the grounds of the Park. The report informed the Committee about the 
reasons for the project, the timescales and the desire of the Trust to adopt 
an active and enabling role within the local communities of Maghull and 
Sefton. The report set out details of milestones; the Maghull Health Park; 
the proposed LSU development; Sefton Council and Mersey Care in 
partnership; MCFT’s commitment to the local community; and 
communication of the project. The report concluded that MCFT wished to 
continue to share information and maintain a dialogue with the Committee 
regarding the proposal. Plans for the ground floor and first floor were 
attached to the report.

Dr. Frank McGuire, Consultant Clinical Psychologist, and Elaine Wilkinson, 
Strategic Project Manager, Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust, were in 
attendance to present the report and to respond to questions raised by 
Members of the Committee.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Staff training.
 After-care for patients on leaving the LSU. Discussions with the 

Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups and the Council’s Adult 
Social Care function would be required.

 After-care within the community needed to be particularly tailored 
towards people with learning difficulties and health inequalities 
addressed.

 The possibility of a virtual tour of facilities by Members of the 
Committee.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the report be noted; and

(2) Dr. Frank McGuire and Elaine Wilkinson be thanked for their 
attendance.

34. PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN 

The Committee considered a briefing note submitted by the Director of 
Public Health, on behalf of the Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing, 
on the development of the Public Health Service Plan 2021/22 and 
providing oversight and delivery of the Service Plan. The report set out the 
background to the matter.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

23

Anna Nygaard, Acting Consultant in Public Health, gave a presentation on 
the Service Plan that set out the following:

 Introduction
 Broader Context
 Operating Principles
 Reflection and Achievements of 2020-21
 2020-21 Focus and Delivery
 Focus and Delivery – 6 Priority Areas
 Performance Monitoring and Review

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 The possibility of additional funding in order to achieve targets.
 The use of “true partnerships” within the presentation.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the intention and objectives of the Public Health Service Plan 
2020/21 be noted; and

(2) the action being taken to deliver tailored support in line with early 
intervention and prevention, health improvement, community health 
care, the wider determinants of heath, health protection and 
pandemic recovery in 2021 and beyond, be noted.

35. INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING UPDATE 

The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult 
Social Care and Health on progress of integrated commissioning and 
highlighting national policy changes that would impact on the future 
landscape of integrated systems. The report set out details of national and 
regional policy that would steer Sefton’s integrated commissioning 
arrangements; work streams; and next steps.

A Member of the Committee asked raised matters on the following issue:

 Members of the Committee would wish to receive updates on work 
associated with integrated commissioning at future meetings.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the update report on integrated commissioning be noted;

(2) governance and oversight will continue to be provided by the 
Committee; and

(3) the fact that decision making in relation to integrated commissioning 
will be made by the Cabinet Members for Health and Wellbeing; 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

24

Adult Social Care; and Children, Schools and Safeguarding, be 
noted.

36. RECONFIGURATION OF SPINAL SURGERY SERVICES IN 
CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) and NHS Southport and Formby CCG on a 
proposal for a single spinal service for Cheshire and Merseyside. The 
proposal was presented to the Committee with a request to review the 
process for developing the proposal as the Health and Social Care Act 
required NHS bodies to consult with local Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees on service change proposals.

The Committee was asked to consider a recommendation that due to the 
minimal impact of the proposal on Sefton patients, it did not represent a 
substantial variation in the way the service was delivered and that the 
proposal development process, including the approach to patient 
engagement, was commensurate with the scale of the proposed change.

The report set out the background to the matter; the proposed model of 
care; spinal surgery activity; patient engagement; together with the next 
steps for the proposal. An equality analysis report, including travel maps, 
was attached to the joint report.

Dr. Rob Caudwell, Chair of NHS Southport and Formby CCG, and Terry 
Hill, QIPP Programme Manager, Sefton CCGs, were in attendance to 
present the report to the Committee and to respond to questions put by 
Members of the Committee.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 Any impact to emergency surgery by the proposal.
 Any potential risks associated with increasing poverty due to the 

possible increase in transport costs. Details of required action 
would be provided in due course.

 Potential barriers for people with protected characteristics as a 
result of the proposal, particularly travel for people with disabilities 
in terms of parking, together with liaison with Merseytravel. This 
would form part of the risk assessment and details would be 
provided in due course.

RESOLVED: That

(1) it be agreed that the proposal for a single spinal service for 
Cheshire and Merseyside does not represent a substantial variation 
and that the approach taken to engage with patients to inform the 
proposal is commensurate with the scale of the proposed change;

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

25

(2) Dr. Rob Caudwell and Terry Hill be thanked for their attendance; 
and

(3) the Chief Officer, NHS South Sefton Clinical Commissioning Group 
and NHS Southport and Formby Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Group, be requested to provide information in due course on the 
following to the Senior Democratic Services Officer for circulation to 
Members of the Committee:

(a) details of action taken in relation to potential risks associated 
with increasing poverty due to the possible increase in 
transport costs; and

(b) details of action taken in relation to potential barriers for 
people with protected characteristics as a result of the 
proposal, particularly travel for people with disabilities in 
terms of parking, together with the outcome of liaison with 
Merseytravel.

37. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - UPDATE 
REPORT 

The Committee considered the joint report of the NHS South Sefton 
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and the NHS Southport and Formby 
CCG, providing an update about the work of the CCGs. The report 
outlined details of the following:

 Covid-19 vaccination programme
 Sefton’s GP led service
 Sefton vaccination volunteering programme
 National vaccination booking service
 Key messages for residents
 NHS reforms to better integrated care
 Shaping Care Together Programme
 Honour for head pharmacist
 Think NHS 111 First
 Governing Body meetings

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer for the Sefton CCGs, was in attendance to 
present the update report and to respond to questions raised by Members 
of the Committee.

A Member of the Committee raised matters on the following issue:

 Further to Minute No. 25 (2) (a) of 5 January 2021, a query was 
raised as to whether the meeting of interest parties to discuss 
Hightown Village GP Surgery had taken place and it was reported 
that a meeting was scheduled for 10 March 2021.

RESOLVED:

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

26

That the update report submitted by the Sefton Clinical Commissioning 
Groups be received.

38. SEFTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS - HEALTH 
PROVIDER PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD 

The Committee considered the joint report of NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Group and NHS Southport and Formby Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), that provided data on key performance 
areas, together with responses for the Friends and Family Test for both 
Southport and Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust and Liverpool University 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. Information on the monitoring of the 7-day 
GP extended access scheme for both CCGs was included within the data. 

Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer, NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport 
and Formby CCG, was in attendance to present the report to the 
Committee and to respond to questions put by Members of the Committee.

Further to Minute No. 26 (2) of 5 January 2021, it was reported that the 
data requested had been incorporated into the performance report.

Members of the Committee asked questions/raised matters on the 
following issues:

 The November 2020 data for the 7-day GP extended access 
scheme for 
NHS Southport and Formby CCG. Further information could be 
obtained.

 A mental health practitioner had been available for appointments for 
NHS Southport and Formby CCG during December 2020 and 
would this be extended to NHS South Sefton CCG? Further 
information could be obtained.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the information on Health Provider Performance be noted; and

(2) the Chief Officer of the Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups be 
requested to provide the following information to the Senior 
Democratic Services Officer for circulation to Members of the 
Committee:

(a) the November 2020 data for the 7-day GP extended access 
scheme for NHS Southport and Formby CCG; and

(b) if the availability of a mental health practitioner would be 
extended to NHS South Sefton CCG.

39. CABINET MEMBER REPORTS 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

27

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer submitting the most recent update reports from the Cabinet 
Member – Adult Social Care, and the Cabinet Member – Health and 
Wellbeing, whose portfolios fell within the remit of the Committee.

Councillors Cummins and Moncur were present at the meeting to present 
their reports and to respond to any questions or issues raised by Members 
of the Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the update reports from the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and 
the Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing be noted.

40. WORK PROGRAMME KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN 

The Committee considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer reviewing the Committee’s Work Programme for the remainder of 
the Municipal Year 2020/21; reporting on progress of the Mental Health 
Issues Working Group; reporting on progress of the Housing Support 
Services to Vulnerable People Working Group; identifying any items for 
pre-scrutiny by the Committee from the latest Key Decision Forward Plan; 
receiving an update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and noting the update from 
Healthwatch Sefton.

The Work Programme for 2020/21 was set out at Appendix A to the report, 
to be considered, along with any additional items to be included and 
agreed.

The report set out progress to date made by the both the Mental Health 
Issues Working Group and the Housing Support Services to Vulnerable 
People Working Group.

There were two Decisions within the latest Key Decision Forward Plan, 
attached to the report at Appendix B, that fell under this Committee’s remit, 
and the Committee was invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny.

The report outlined recent activity undertaken by the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and set out an 
update on recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton, as attached 
to the report at Appendix C.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the Work Programme for 2020/21, as set out in Appendix A to the 
report, be noted;

(2) the progress made by the Mental Health Issues Working Group be 
noted;

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND 
HEALTH) - TUESDAY 23RD FEBRUARY, 2021

28

(3) the progress made by the Housing Support Services to Vulnerable 
People Working Group; be noted;

(4) the contents of the Key Decision Forward Plan for the period 1 
March – 30 June 2021, be noted;

(5) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee be noted; and

(6) the recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton, as outlined 
in Appendix C to the report, be noted.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



NHS England and NHS Improvement

KD - Version 3 – July 2020

BRIEFING FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE ON THE CURRENT CHALLENGES 
FACED BY DENTISTRY IN LIGHT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

1.0 Purpose of the Report

To brief the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the current challenges faced by dentistry in light 
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact this is having on service delivery.

2.0 Background

On 25 March 2020, the Chief Dental Officer for England advised that, in order to respond safely to 
the COVID-19 emergency, all routine and non-urgent dental care should pause and that local 
Urgent Dental Centres (UDCs) should be established to treat urgent and emergency dental 
problems where face to face intervention was required.  

Other practices (non-UDCs) were asked to put total triage arrangements in place for access to 
dental services adopting an “AAA” approach: advice; analgesia; antibiotics.

In response, NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI) established a national standard 
operating model for the delivery of NHS dental services to ensure the safety of the public and staff 
working in dental practices and, in accordance with that national operating model, arrangements 
for dental advice and urgent dental care were put in place across the North West.  

The resumption of NHS dental services started with effect from 8 June 2020 and in Cheshire and 
Merseyside we put in place a process, in collaboration with our Local Dental Committees, to 
support a safe re-start of services.  As a result, all dental practices across Cheshire and 
Merseyside are open and providing dental services including the 34 dental practices in Sefton. 
2.0

3.0 Current position

There are currently 27 UDCs operating across Cheshire and Merseyside and access to and 
support from these will remain available as we continue to work with the profession to restore face 
to face care more widely in all dental practices and deliver more aerosol generating procedures 
(AGPs).

It is important to note that practices are required to follow the detailed guidance issued by Public 
Health England relating to infection prevention and control (IPC) and personal protective 
equipment (PPE) in order to ensure that the safety and wellbeing of patients and dental staff 
remains paramount.  

These important safety requirements inevitably impact on the levels of patient activity that can be 
seen and the types of care that can be undertaken, but it remains a key focus of our work with 
practices as services are restored. In line with the dentistry’s standard operating procedure, 
dentists are continuing to prioritise patients with the highest need or priority, such as children and 
those most at risk of oral disease. 

This safety-first approach may mean that some of our practices are not yet able to offer the full 
range of services that they would want to at this point in time.  We have maintained the UDCs 
established during the pandemic and they are continuing to see and treat patients who don’t have 
a regular dentist or who can’t be treated by their local dental practice.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



NHS England and NHS Improvement

KD - Version 3 – July 2020

In addition to treating urgent presentations, when patients are in pain, practices are also are 
working through their patient lists and contacting patients whose treatment was delayed due to the 
lockdown period, in order to prioritise those in most need first.

This has an impact on the number of patient’s practices can see in a single day. Throughout the 
pandemic, the NHS has supported dental teams with income protection and a staggered approach 
to returning dentistry to pre-pandemic levels. 

There are no circumstances when a practice should prioritise a routine case over an urgent case 
as it is a condition of income protection that they prioritise all known and unknown patients to the 
practice who require urgent dental care if contacted directly or via 111 services. Ultimately, dentists 
and their teams are skilled clinicians and they use their clinical judgement to assess and respond 
to patient need. 

Commissioners are working closely with dental practices, Local Dental Committees and 
Healthwatch to try and resolve the ongoing challenges faced by patients who do not have an 
existing dentist and require dental treatment. The challenges faced locally are also felt more widely 
in other parts of the country.

Additional investment has been made in the existing Telephone Triage and Advice Helpline and we 
are rapidly developing a new pathway for urgent care where patients who do not have a regular 
dentist are offered definitive treatment following their urgent care appointment. In short this means 
that patients who previously would have attended once will now remain with that urgent care 
provider for treatment completion. Maintaining the existing network of UDC’s has been agreed by 
commissioners for the foreseeable future utilising national guidance and permitted local flexibilities. 

Working with our dental colleagues, Consultants in Dental Public Health, and the Safeguarding 
teams within the local authorities we have designed a referral pathway so we can offer Looked 
After Children a routine dental appointment. A new online referral platform has been developed to 
enable a non-dental professional to make a referral. The system is password protected to ensure 
that only named individuals can make the referral. Referrals are forwarded to the closest practice 
on the pathway where the patient is currently living.

A pilot pathway is in development to facilitate a dental review and treatment prior to Adjuvant 
Zoledronic acid treatment as part of the breast cancer pathway. Whilst this is not yet formalised, 
we are working with Clatterbridge to ensure patients are seen and treated so that treatment is not 
delayed. Following evaluation this is likely to rolled out to all patients who require a dentally fit 
certificate prior to surgery.

3.0 Conclusion

NHS Dentistry is an important clinical and preventive service, so our focus is now on supporting 
dentists and their teams to see as many patients as safely as possible and reduce the impact on 
patients. However, we are mindful that current IPC arrangements will continue to prevent a return 
to normal practice throughput so have also retained income protection measures to support the 
restoration.

Tom Knight 

Head of Primary Care

NHSEI North West (Cheshire and Merseyside)

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



1

Access to general practice and NHS 111 services 
during the COVID-19 pandemic
June 2021

Overview 

This paper updates the Sefton Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Adult Social 
Care and Health on access to general practice and NHS 111 since the start of the 
COVID-19 pandemic.   

Access to general practice  

Since the start of the pandemic GP practices in Sefton have been open and have 
continued to provide services to their patients throughout the period. 

In April 20, as a result of the pandemic, NHS England and Improvement (NHSE/I) 
introduced a Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for general practice, this advocated 
a ‘total triage’ approach to access appointments and changed significantly the way in 
which practices operated. 

Total triage means that every patient contacting the practice first provides some 
information on the reasons for contact and is triaged before making an appointment. 
This approach reduces avoidable footfall into practices and protect patients and staff 
from the risks of infection. It enables practices to manage work more efficiently, whilst 
supporting continuity of care and equity of access.

Despite the challenges faced in the past year as a result of the pandemic and the 
mobilisation and delivery of COVID vaccines, GPs have delivered more patient 
contacts than previous years. Over the last six months GP practices have organised 
over 685,200 appointments for Sefton residents outside of vaccination appointments, 
an increase of 21.5% from the previous six months. The majority of these contacts 
have been through telephone and digital means however all practices have continued 
to offer face to face appointments, where clinically necessary throughout. 

Access remains multifaceted and we continue to offer:

 Appointments via your registered GP practice in core hours
 Extended access (evenings and weekends) via GP Federations working with 

primary care networks (PCNs) 
 Home visits (either via your registered practice or via the acute visiting service)

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



2

 Out of Hours access for more urgent care via PC24 the commissioned provider

There is also a broader range of access via community pharmacy (both Care at the 
Chemist and the Community Pharmacy Consultation Service) and NHS 111.

In May 2021, NHSE/I updated its SOP and advocated a blended offer, to deliver 
accessible services, including face to face appointments as well as the option of online 
consultations, connecting patients to the right service for their needs, following 
infection control and social distancing guidance.

The CCGs will support practices to undertake an assessment on how this can be 
adopted safely in practices, taking into account workforce and estates constraints. As 
part of the CCG Local Quality Contract practices will be engaging with their patients 
to understand how changes to access have been received by patients and how access 
can be delivered going forward.

Access to NHS 111

Accident and Emergency (A&E) attendances dropped dramatically at the start of 
COVID-19, as a result NHS 111 experienced an unprecedented number of calls going 
from 189,321 in February 2020 to 347,877 in March 2020.  

Unsurprisingly, performance plummeted in NHS 111 and call abandonment rose as 
the whole of the North West was using NHS 111 as their first point of contact.  This 
was a huge shift in population behaviour but also provided the learning to recognise 
the huge role that NHS 111 could play in reducing unnecessary A&E attendances and 
increasing virtual consultations.  

NHS 111 First was implemented on 17 November 2020 for the North Mersey and 
Southport and Ormskirk systems and the programme was launched nationally on 1 
December 2020.  NHS 111 First was introduced to enable patients to be directed 
(direct booked or referred where configured) to the most appropriate service for their 
healthcare need.  The programme was also intended to support social distancing in 
A&E departments and manage patients virtually when appropriate.  

Residents can access NHS 111 via telephone or online, which follow the same 
national clinical algorithm to identify the most appropriate service or healthcare 
professional to meet their needs.  

Since the huge spike in activity to NHS 111 in March 2020, the last year has seen a 
volatile picture for calls into NHS 111 as well as NHS 111 Online.  However, since the 
implementation of NHS 111 First, the service has increased staff by approximately 
40%, which has seen a significant improvement in performance.  The percentage of 
abandoned calls have reduced, which has resulted in an all-time high for calls 
answered in March 2021.  Approximately 70% of NHS 111 calls are answered in 60 
seconds (from NHS 111 First go-live) but prior to this, it was as low as 24% (October 
2020) due to unprecedented call volumes and previous staffing levels not being able 
to meet the new levels of demand during COVID-19.  

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



3

Since November 2020 the North West has seen an increase in NHS 111 activity by 
33%.  Southport and Formby and South Sefton have seen increases in 17% and 29% 
respectively, in the same period.  NHS 111 Online activity has actually decreased from 
the start of the pandemic but using the online version enables patients to complete the 
clinical pathway without waiting for an advisor.  This provides unlimited capacity for 
NHS 111 as the whole process is automated until the patient receives a disposition.  

When NHS 111 users have completed the clinical pathway they are provided with a 
disposition with a service and a timeframe for example, attend A&E, within 1 hour.  
The dispositions are recorded into categories to show the patient flow from NHS 111.  
Of the total calls to NHS 111, they result in 20% of calls are closed with advice only, 
2% are advised to contact another service, 55% directed to primary or community 
care, 11% referred to either A&E or the local clinical assessment service (CAS) and 
12% transferred to 999 operations centre.  These figures are consistent across the 
North West for all CCG areas including for the whole of Sefton.  

In Sefton, there is greater access to both non-urgent and urgent community and 
primary care services following implementation in NHS 111 First.  Residents can now 
be directly booked or referred into A&E, Same Day Emergency Care (SDEC), local 
urgent treatment centres (UTCs) or walk-in Centres (WiCs), treatment rooms, 
community respiratory team (via the CAS), or community pharmacies, which is soon 
to be expanded further as NHS 111 First develops.  

The CAS was commissioned to a 24/7 service from November 2020 and is able to 
manage more symptoms and conditions, which has increased access to a wider scope 
of calls from NHS 111 to clinically validate or treat virtually.  There have been slots 
readily available for patients coming via NHS 111 to all services; including secondary 
care direct booking into minor injuries to NHS 111 allocated Treatment Room 
appointments the same day.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Phase 2 Clinical Integration of Haemato-Oncology 
Services in North Merseyside 
June 2021

1. INTRODUCTION 

The proposal set out in this paper is for the clinical integration of haemato-oncology 
services in North Merseyside. It is presented to Sefton Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for Adult Social Care and Health to ask it to review the process to 
develop the proposal. Under the Health and Social Care Act, all NHS Health 
bodies should consult with Scrutiny Committees on service change proposals.

The Committee is asked to consider the recommendation by NHS South Sefton 
CCG that due to the minimal impact of the proposal on Sefton patients, the proposed 
service change does not represent a substantial variation in the way the service is 
delivered and that the proposal development process, including the approach to 
patient engagement, is commensurate with the scale of the proposed change.

2. BACKGROUND 

Haemato-oncology  (H-O) services manage the diagnosis and treatment of blood 
cancers. These include Leukaemia, Lymphoma, and Myeloma. Over 40,000 people 
are diagnosed each year with a blood cancer and there are over 250,000 people 
living with a blood cancer (Bloodcancer UK, 2020).  Blood cancer is the fifth most 
common type of cancer in the UK and 1 in 16 men and 1 in 22 women will develop 
blood cancer at some point in their lives (Bloodcancer UK, 2020). The predicted 
national trend is that this will continue to increase.

The main treatments for blood cancers are Chemotherapy, Stem Cell Transplant 
(also referred to as Bone Marrow Transplant), Immunotherapy and Radiotherapy. 
Diagnostics and treatments in HO cancers are complex and varied. Treatments can 
be intensive and require specialist multi-disciplinary team resource to be delivered 
safely.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



2

Historically systemic treatments such as chemotherapy and immunotherapy have 
been delivered by local hospitals rather than Clatterbridge as the tertiary cancer 
centre which provides these types of treatments for solid tumours. Due to the 
increasing number of speciality diagnoses and the availability of ever more complex 
therapies, it is widely recognised that H-O conditions should be managed by 
subspecialist H-O multidisciplinary teams.

In 2015, as part of the Healthy Liverpool blueprint, it was agreed that H-O services 
should be unified across the city. This was following the overwhelming clinical 
consensus among the city’s cancer specialists that the current split was increasingly 
unsustainable for people with blood cancers. An options appraisal was conducted 
with clinical teams exploring the critical success factors of Do Nothing, Integration 
and Collaboration approaches.

This was supported at this time by the Chief Executives from Aintree University 
Hospital Foundation Trust, The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospital 
NHS Trust (RLBUHT) and The Clatterbridge Cancer Centre NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
In July 2017, the RLBUHT H-O service transferred to CCC.

Haemato-Oncology services in the Liverpool and North Merseyside area are 
therefore currently provided by:

 Clatterbridge Cancer Centre (CCC) 
 The Aintree site of Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

(LUHFT)  
 Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust (S&O)

In 2019, RLBUHT and AUH merged to become one organisation, Liverpool 
University Hospital NHS Trust (LUHFT).  Despite changes in leadership at all of the 
Trusts party to the 2015 agreement, there has been no change in consensus since 
2015 by the clinical staff from across both CCC and LUHFT that the service going 
forward should be a unified model of care.

It is important to note that there is a separate project to address the clinical model for 
non-malignant haematology. The guiding principle remains that general haematology 
services will not be destabilised through this H-O service change. 

The next phase in creating a local regional specialist service for H-O led by 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre Liverpool (CCC-L) involves integration of clinical teams 
and managerial transfer of H-O services from the Aintree site of Liverpool University 
Hospitals NHSFT (LUHFT) to CCC-L.

The case for change describes significant benefits for the unification of H-O services. 
These include:

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



3

 Improved clinical outcomes
 Enhanced safety and quality
 Enhanced patient experience
 Improved access to specialist care for all patients with blood cancer
 Enhanced community provision and patient choice (as part of the CCC Future 

Clinical Model Project)
 Enhanced cancer service brand and reputation
 Addressing growth by increasing capacity and capability

3. PROPOSED MODEL OF CARE

This proposal involves changes to the way North Mersey H-O services are delivered. 
Within North Mersey adult H-O services are provided by both CCC and AUH. These 
services provide emergency and non-emergency care that may:

 Diagnose blood cancer or disorders using a wide range of diagnostics such as 
scans and biopsies 

 Treat blood cancers or disorders with chemotherapy or medication
 Provide long term follow-up

However, the ways in which these services are delivered differ between both 
organisations and services. CCC-L is a specialist regional service and is the only 
provider for Teenage and Young Adult services and adult Bone Marrow 
Transplantation within Cheshire and Merseyside. The nearest other Level Four (i.e. 
transplant) units are Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust and The Christie 
NHS Foundation Trust. 

The clinical service is spilt into four specialities: Lymphoid, Myeloid, Plasma Cell, and 
Stem Cell transplantation which is delivered by a multi-disciplinary team that are 
aligned to the four H-O specialities. The haematology medical and nursing teams at 
AUH currently provide H-O care as well as care for a number of non-malignant 
conditions. 

Service Reconfiguration Proposal 

As shown in the info-graphic below, the proposed reconfiguration of services would 
affect the way H-O services are delivered and the access/location of services for 
patients living in the North of the area.  The proposal has two strands, firstly it 
involves unifying both Clatterbridge Cancer Centre Liverpool (CCC-L) and AUH 
clinical teams in sub-specialist teams to deliver care across the two sites and 
secondly changes to patient pathways and points of access.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



4

1. Unification of sub-specialist teams

The clinical service is split into four specialties:  Lymphoid, Myeloid, Plasma Cell and 
Stem Cell transplantation, and is delivered by a multi-disciplinary team aligned to the 
four H-O specialties.  The LUHFT Aintree clinicians will align to this model of care 
within the CCC Acute Care Division. 

2. Pathways and Access 

The proposed transformation would see a change in the patient pathway and patient 
access points as it is proposes a hub and spoke model of care of with the aim of 
delivering local care where possible, central care where necessary. 

This proposal will mean that:

 Higher acuity inpatient pathways of care will be delivered in CCC-L.  This 
equates to six inpatient beds worth of activity to be transferred from AUH to 
CCC-L*

 Complex pathways of care such as acute leukaemia and stem cell transplants 
will remain within CCC-L

 Outpatient and day care will be delivered across both sites, CCC-L and AUH. 
The majority of patients who currently attend the AUH site will continue to do 
so as clinics and treatments will still be operated on that site 

 Emergency Pathways of care will be supported by CCC’s 24/7 hotline service 
and rapid access to CCC-L

 Shared care pathways for patients whose primary condition is not H-O, such 
as frailty, will continue to be  clinically managed by AUH in line with the 
CCC/LUHFT model of care 

*As part of a mutual aid approach to provide capacity and support infection 
prevention and control measures during the Covid-19 pandemic,

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



5

patients usually bedded at Aintree have been using CCC-L beds. This is viewed 
as a temporary measure and does not pre-empt the outcome of the change 
assurance process.

4. ACTIVITY

Haemato-oncology services are commissioned by NHS England Specialised 
Commissioning and each of the Cheshire and Merseyside CCGs. 

The figure below shows admissions to Aintree per CCG (including some patients 

admitted multiple times): Full Year 2019 (Total 422 admissions for 157 patients) 

NHS South Sefton CCG has the largest proportion of inpatient activity at 32% of the 
total.

5. IMPACT OF PROPOSED CHANGES ON SERVICE USERS

The proposed transformation would see a change in the patient pathway and patient 
access points. One of the concerns which naturally surfaces is the issue of travel 
and the fact that the formation of the new service means that some elements of the 
new services will be available only at CCC and not AUH. In logistical terms this 
means that patients from some localities will incur additional travel times and when 
using public transport will have to travel across the city centre.  A travel time analysis 
is shown in the Appendix.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



6

A pre-consultation Equality Analysis report was produced. The analysis sought to 
identify issues pertinent to protected characteristics and ensure these are fully 
explored through the engagement process.

6. ENGAGEMENT

Engagement with patients, blood cancer support groups, relatives/carers and 
healthcare professionals has been important in shaping these proposals. Feedback 
from previous engagement/consultations including Transforming Cancer Care 
(2014), Healthy Liverpool (2016), Sefton2gether (2020) and North Mersey Spinal 
Services (2020) has shown there is general support for a ‘local where possible, 
centralised where necessary’ approach to specialist services. 

Engagement on these specific proposals began in late 2020. We presented the 
proposals and draft engagement approach to patient groups and Healthwatches in 
Sefton and Liverpool – which account for more than 70% of blood cancer admissions 
to Aintree. There was general support for the proposals and our engagement 
approach.  

Extensive targeted engagement with people with knowledge/experience of local 
blood cancer services began on Monday 10th May and runs until Sunday 20th June. It 
comprises several strands and aims to:

 Learn from the experiences of people who have been treated for blood 
cancer, their relatives/carers and health professionals to help shape future 
care.

 Identify any concerns people may have about the proposed changes and 
potential mitigations.

 
Fuller details of engagement activities and preliminary feedback are available in the 
Appendix.

7. ASSURANCE PROCESS

A Stage 1 Strategic Sense Check panel was held with NHS England and NHS 
Improvement North West on 23rd March 2021. Support was received to proceed to 
the Business Case stage. Using the decision-making tool within the national 
‘Effective Service Change Toolkit’ it was agreed that the level of assurance required 
is regional and that a Stage 2 assurance gateway is unlikely to be required. This is 
supported by the low numbers of patients impacted by this proposal, the relatively 
low impact of the proposed change and the strong Strategic Outline Case presented.

Some outstanding financial issues remain before the full business case can be 
completed. However it is not expected that this will delay implementation.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



7

8.  RECOMMENDATION AND NEXT STEPS

It is recommended to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee that this proposal does not 
represent a substantial variation and that the approach taken to engage with patients 
to inform this proposal is commensurate with the scale of the proposed change.

Next steps include production of a full engagement report, including 
recommendations based on the feedback. A full equality impact assessment and 
recommendations will also be produced.  Both reports will be shared with the project 
partners and with commissioners to inform the final proposals and decision. 
Subject to the relevant approvals, the proposal would be operationalised and the 
new service would be established from October 2021.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



8

Appendix

Travel time impact analysis

Overview of engagement activities and findings to date

Communications have included:

 Dedicated webpage with full information & link to online survey 
(clatterbridgecc.nhs.uk/patients/bloodcancer2021)

 3 online engagement events (19th May, 25th May, 10th June) 
 Flyers included in patient letters
 Information leaflet 
 Digital screens and posters in hospital clinics
 Social media posts and website news story
 Emails & phone calls to local blood cancer support groups

Semi-structured patient interviews

Detailed phone interviews have been carried out with 12 blood cancer patients (9 
inpatients, 3 daycase) treated at Aintree University Hospital (AUH) and/or 
Clatterbridge Cancer Centre – Liverpool (CCC-L) in the last year. This involved semi-
structured interviews about their experience of care and their views on the potential 
change to inpatient care. Patients indicated broad support for the proposals. Of the 4 
Sefton patients interviewed: 3 said they would prefer to be admitted to CCC-L in 
future; 1 said they would prefer AUH as it was closer to home.

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



9

Admissions Interviewees Preference Reason

1 CCC-L Just for cancerAUH only 2 from Sefton

1 AUH Closer to home

1 from Sefton 1 CCC-L Preferred having own room & 
autonomy

1 from West 
Lancashire

1 CCC-L Had most treatment there & liked 
having own room and facilities 
(e.g. fridge)

AUH & CCC-L

2 from 
Liverpool

2 CCC-L Preferred CCC-L for inpatient care

1 from Sefton 1 CCC-L Liked CCC-L and facilities in room

1 from 
Liverpool

1 CCC-L Modern facilities and own room

CCC-L only

1 from Wirral 1 CCC-L Specialist centre so travel not an 
issue

Virtual engagement groups

We have held three virtual engagement groups on 19th May, 25th May and 10th June 
via MS Teams Live with hospital staff presenting the proposals and answering 
questions. Attendees have shown general support for the proposals.

Online survey

People with experience of local blood cancer services have been invited to complete 
an online survey to have their say on the proposals. The survey is available via the 
dedicated webpage with full details of the proposals. It runs until Sunday 20th June. 
The responses to date indicate broad overall support for the proposals:

 47% responses are from Sefton; 29% West Lancashire; 12% Liverpool; 6% St 
Helens; 6% Wirral

 94% agree with the proposals; 6% don’t know; 0% disagree 
 50% Sefton responders so far said they would prefer to be admitted to CCC-L 

in future; 37% said they wouldn’t mind which hospital it was; 13% said they 
would prefer AUH as it was closer to home. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



10

Engagement with patient support groups and GPs

We contacted local blood cancer support groups to inform them about the proposals, 
offer to attend their meetings and invite them and their members to get involved. 
Again, there has been broad overall support for the proposals. 

Group Engagement Comments

Haematology 
patient support 
group 

Attended two of their 
virtual meetings (9th 
Feb and 11th May)

Generally supportive. Some 
questions around nursing in single 
rooms and importance of ensuring 
patients don’t feel isolated

Stem Cell Scousers Phone call (11th May) 
and virtual meeting 
(28th May)

Questions about CCC-L facilities 
and blood cancer services generally

West Lancashire & 
Merseyside 
Myeloma Support 
Group

Phone call and 
presentation to virtual 
meeting

Generally supportive. Questions 
about blood cancer services 
generally 

Lymphoma Action Email & phone call 
(10th May)

General support. Agreed to share 
information with members

Leukaemia Care Email & phone call 
(12th May)

General support. Agreed to share 
information with members

GP groups

We have presented the proposals to the South Sefton (13th May) and Southport & 
Formby (26th May) Wider GP Groups. Again, there was general support for the 
proposals.  

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



1

Scrutiny Briefing Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(Adult Social Care and Health)

Date of Meeting: 22 June 2021

Subject: Report of Fiona Taylor, Chief Officer 

Organisation: NHS South Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG

Contact Officer: Lyn Cooke
Tel: 0151 317 8456
Email: lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk

Purpose/Summary

To provide Members of the Committee with an update about the work of NHS South 
Sefton CCG and NHS Southport and Formby CCG.

Recommendation(s)

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health) are 
requested to receive this report.

Page 29

Agenda Item 7

mailto:lyn.cooke@southseftonccg.nhs.uk


2

Update for Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) 
June 2021

If you would like more information about any of the items contained in this update, if you have 
any questions about local health services, or any particular issues you would like to raise, 
please call 0151 317 8456.   

New chair for CCG in south Sefton

Dr Pete Chamberlain has been announced as the new chair of NHS South Sefton CCG. Pete 
joined the CCG in 2011 as a lead clinician for strategy and innovation and became a Governing 
Body member in 2015. During this time Pete has carried out a secondment to Mersey Care NHS 
Foundation Trust, focusing on the development of community services in south Sefton. Pete has 
carried out these roles alongside his day to day work seeing patients in general practice, 
currently being based at Westway Medical Centre in Maghull. He is a fellow of The Health 
Foundation and a trained improvement advisor, having completed the Quality Improvement 
Fellowship based at the Institute for Health Improvement in Boston, America. Pete has an 
interest in health information technology, care for older people, long term conditions, improving 
the quality of health services and innovation within in healthcare. 

Pete takes on the role from Dr Craig Gillespie who has worked with the CCG as a Governing 
Body member for eight years and has been in the role of both vice chair and chair in that time. 
Craig is stepping down to focus on his role of clinical director for Crosby, Bootle and Maghull 
Primary Care Network (PCN). In this PCN role, Craig will continue to take a leading role in 
primary care services for south Sefton residents and the CCG will continue to work closely with 
him.

General practice update

Single PCN for Southport and Formby  

There is now a single PCN across NHS Southport and Formby CCG’s member GP practices. 
This is an exciting development and means that all practices will now be involved in delivering 
PCN services, which include structured medication reviews, access to social prescribers, 
enhanced health in care homes, early cancer diagnosis and extended hours. It also means that 
the PCN will be able to make full use of the Additional Role Reimbursement (ARR) funding from 
NHS England and Improvement (NHSE/I) available in 2021-2022. This year the ARR scheme 
has been expanded to include new roles, including dietitians, podiatrists, occupational therapists 
and a mental health practitioner to be delivered in partnership with local mental health providers.

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



3

Promoting GP practice access

We are reminding Sefton residents that their GP practice continues to be there for them when 
they need medical advice and support, as it has been throughout the pandemic. Using patients 
stories and videos, the CCGs are highlighting the different ways that practices are ensuring 
patients can continue to be seen in COVID safe ways – from remote appointments using 
telephone or video technology, or face to face if safe to do so and deemed necessary by a GP. 

In Sefton, the number of patients GP practices are seeing, either face to face, over the phone or 
via a video link, is increasing month on month. So, patients are also being asked to be kind to GP 
practice staff at this busy time and to treat them with respect. Practices are now starting to 
concentrate solely on the healthcare needs of residents, having completed their part in 
vaccinating the most vulnerable people of Sefton in the top nine priority groups. 

As the threat of infection from COVID-19 remains within our communities, patients are being 
asked to continue to follow guidance in place and take the necessary precautions, such as 
wearing face coverings and practicing good hygiene. New ways of providing GP services due to 
COVID-19 are still in place in order to maintain access to GP practice teams whilst protecting 
patients and staff alike. Triage (making an assessment of your condition and prioritising care 
accordingly) is an important part of how GP practices work. This has always been in place but 
has been vitally important during the pandemic.

eConsult

Over the past 12 months practices have been using eConsult to support the triage and 
assessment of patients during the pandemic ahead of face to face, phone or video appointments. 
For patients, it has meant an additional way for them to contact their practice during this time and 
in recent months there has been a significant increase in referrals via eConsult. To ensure 
continued, timely management of the assessment process by practices in light of the increasing 
numbers of referrals via this route, some practices will only be operating eConsult during their 
regular opening hours as part of a trial. It means patients requiring immediate advice or care can 
be followed up as soon as possible and not have to wait until their surgery is open, which is the 
case where an eConsult referral is made overnight when their practice is closed. It is also 
acknowledged that online systems like eConsult may be a barrier for some patients in accessing 
care. The pilot follows discussions between the CCGs and the local medical committee (LMC). 
Those practices choosing to end eConsult referrals outside opening hours will do so for an initial 
period of three months and this will be subject to review.

COVID-19 vaccination programme

There continues to be good vaccine uptake across all eligible groups in Sefton, including one of 
the highest rates of immunisation amongst care home workers in the region. Sefton’s primary 
care network (PCN) led COVID-19 vaccination services have completed their part in the 
programme to vaccinate the most vulnerable in priority groups 1-9. Whilst they continue to mop 
up any small numbers of remaining patients in these groups and address hesitancy working 
together with council and other system colleagues, they are returning their focus to deliver 
general practice services to patients. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



4

As the vaccination programme moves quickly to younger age groups, it means that all eligible 
Sefton residents can arrange their jab through the national booking service. There are increased 
appointments available in Sefton through nine pharmacies led centres in the following areas - 
Ainsdale, Bootle, Formby, Litherland, Seaforth, Southport, Waterloo. Anyone eligible across all 
priority groups can contact the national service directly to book an appointment at 
www.nhs.uk/covid-vaccination or by calling 119 free of charge, anytime between 7am and 11pm 
seven days a week. 

Praise for COVID-19 vaccination volunteers 

NHS teams in Sefton are celebrating the outstanding contribution from volunteers across the 
local COVID-19 vaccination programme during Volunteers Week 2021. The COVID-19 
vaccination volunteer programme, set up by the CCGs in partnership with Sefton CVS, has been 
a great success with over 250 people applying to help. As of 26 May, an estimated 6,182 
volunteer hours were carried out to support local vaccination services, totalling an equivalent 
estimated wage value of £81,417. Volunteers provided support in four local vaccination centres 
in Sefton, run by our GP led primary care networks. The CCGs and Sefton CVS took the 
opportunity to applaud the hard work and dedication of these vaccination teams during 
Volunteers Week, which ran from 1 to 7 June. Certificates were awarded to volunteers across the 
local vaccination sites to commend their efforts at socially distanced celebration events in the 
lead up to Volunteers Week. 

Changing commissioning landscape

Earlier in the year the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) published a white paper – 
‘Integration and Innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all’. It sets out 
proposals to build on the successful NHS response to the pandemic and bring health and care 
services closer together to improve care and tackle health inequalities. The reforms build on the 
NHS’s Long Term Plan and a bill will be laid in Parliament when parliamentary time allows to 
carry the proposals into law. 

Both CCGs believe the plans set out by NHSE/I will enable greater progress to be made on joint 
work in the borough between health and care partners through Sefton2gether and our Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy to strengthen local arrangements. 

Alongside this and also in line with the proposed NHS reforms and aspirations for local place 
arrangements in Sefton, Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership’s (CMHCP’s) 
work to establish a mechanism for joint decision making for CCGs by April 2022 in the region 
continues. Ahead of that, CMHCP was designated as an Integrated Care System (ICS) in April 
2021. Our Governing Bodies have now recommended the establishment of a joint committee 
across Cheshire and Merseyside and that proposal has been accepted and approved by the 
wider GP membership. This will pave the way for the progression of the Integrated Care System 
(ICS) across the region. The chief officer of Knowsley CCG is continuing to lead the development 
of the committee and is consulting with relevant members on the proposed terms of reference. 
This work is supported by a Partnership Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to support a 
smooth transition to future arrangements. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 7

http://www.nhs.uk/covid-vaccination


5

 The white paper can be found here
 A letter to system leaders from NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSE/I) can be 

found here  
 Frequently asked questions about the white paper can be found here
 NHSE/I’s response to the legislative consultation can be seen here 

Borough based working

We continue to work with system partners and Sefton Council, as it leads the development of an 
Integrated Care Partnership (ICP), which will underpin wider changes at ICS level and deliver our 
joint objectives of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and Sefton2gether. Additionally, we are 
working with council colleagues to understand what CCG functions could be integrated at ICP 
level to support delivery of our joint work programme in the ICP including areas such as quality.

Below is just one example of progress we are making together. 

Sefton mental health review

The first meeting of a task and finish group to lead our joint mental health review took place in 
mid April with strong representation from partner organisations. Phase one of the review is 
focusing on data, intelligence and evidence building. Discussions so far have focused on 
housing, early help and families and the need to stronger connectivity across services. Modelling 
undertaken during phase one of the pandemic has highlighted a 30% increase in demand for 
services, which has mainly been seen in “downstream” secondary care and crisis services. The 
group is adopting a population health management approach and so focusing on the needs of 
those at greatest risk as opposed to being service-led. The task and finish group is reporting 
directly to the Health and Wellbeing Board. In addition, the group is feeding into Cheshire and 
Merseyside work, with the chair also sitting on the system oversight group. This will ensure 
strong connectivity to national, regional and system-wide mental health transformation funding 
opportunities for the benefit of Sefton residents.

Shaping Care Together – update

Shaping Care Together is a programme run by local NHS leaders across Southport, Formby and 
West Lancashire that seeks to ‘futureproof’ NHS services by exploring new ways of working, as 
well as utilising money, staff and buildings to maximum effect. It will prepare our local NHS to 
meet the challenges of the future – both those we know about and those that cannot be foreseen 
– delivering high-quality services that are affordable, efficient and, above all, safe. It will also look 
at ways in which the NHS can deliver more services in the local community. An initial round of 
engagement earlier this year saw hundreds of responses from local people and groups, raising 
issues as diverse as the quality of hospital buildings and car parking, right the way through to 
how different parts of the NHS can be more joined-up and how we can best help patients to 
manage long-term conditions. 

Programme leaders are urging more people to get involved by completing the Shaping Care 
Together questionnaire that can be found on the dedicated website 
https://yoursayshapingcaretogether.co.uk/home-welcome 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/legislating-for-integrated-care-systems-five-recommendations-to-government-and-parliament/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/C1127-integrated-care-systems-next-steps-letter.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/C1127-faqs-on-ics-legislative-recommendations.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/legislating-for-integrated-care-systems-five-recommendations-to-government-and-parliament/
https://yoursayshapingcaretogether.co.uk/home-welcome


6

Alongside this, clinicians and care professionals are being invited to a second round of 
workshops to gain their input on the programme. Yorkshire & Humber Clinical Senate has been 
formally requested to be the critical friend and the North West Clinical Senate has been formally 
requested as the stage 2 clinical assurance. 

CCG self-assessment 2020-21

NHS England and Improvement (NHSE/I) has introduced a simplified approach to this year’s 
annual assessment of CCGs’ performance due to the continuing impact of COVID-19. In 
previous years we have carried out a self assessment against a defined performance framework, 
initially called the Improvement and Assessment Framework and more recently the NHS 
Oversight Framework. This year’s annual assessment process is focusing on our contributions to 
local delivery of the overall system plan for recovery, with emphasis on the effectiveness of 
working relationships in the local system. The process comprised a self-assessment by the CCG 
and a follow up meeting with NHSE/I at the end of May. NHSE/I will advise our CCGs of their 
findings and final assessments in due course.

Financial framework

Due to the ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic, NHSE/I has advised that the pre 
COVID-19 financial framework and contracting processes will continue to be suspended for the 
first half (H1) of the 2021-2022 financial year. Planning guidance issued on 26 March 2021 refers 
to the requirement for the Cheshire and Merseyside system to break even in the first half of the 
2021-2022 financial year. CCG allocations for H1 are based on the second half of the 2020-21 
financial year. The CCGs are working alongside all partners across the Cheshire and Merseyside 
area to manage within allocated resources and it is expected that the CCG will reach a break-
even financial position in line with its allocation for the first six months of the financial year. The 
CCGs will continue to evaluate its expenditure on a monthly basis to respond to guidance 
relating to the second part of the financial year when it is published during the summer. 

Urgent Treatment Centre to go live from end of June 

Litherland Walk-in Centre has been re-designated as an Urgent Treatment Centre as part of a 
national initiative to improve the care offered in non-life threatening situations. The newly 
branded Litherland Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) better reflects the extended range of 
services now being made available. Patients will be able to access enhanced services such as 
blood tests, urine tests and x-rays to get a better understanding of their condition. Medication can 
also be prescribed and prescriptions issued. Where necessary, they can refer you to other urgent 
care services within the community and hospital. There will be no change to operational hours 
and the UTC can be accessed in the same way as before after the switch on 30 June 2021. It will 
continue to be a same day urgent care service, providing treatment for minor injuries and 
illnesses that are not an emergency, or life or limb threatening. Litherland Urgent Treatment 
Centre will be open seven days a week, between 8am and 8pm, 365 days a year. This GP led 
service will be run by highly skilled clinical practitioners.

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



7

Mersey Care now the Sefton-wide provider of community services 

Community services in Southport and Formby switched to the provision of Mersey Care NHS 
Foundation Trust as planned on 1 May, through a seamless transfer process for patients. It 
means that there is now a single provider of services like blood testing, district nursing, falls 
prevention, diabetes care, therapies and rehabilitation and pain management for the whole of 
Sefton. 

Transfer of North West Boroughs to Mersey Care

Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust (MCFT) has completed the acquisition of North West 
Boroughs Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (NWBH) and now provides an enlarged range of 
mental health and community health services across Merseyside, Cheshire and the North West 
region. As of 1 June 2021, staff and services became part of Mersey Care after approval for the 
transaction was given by regulators, NHSE/I and the executive boards of both trusts. Services 
including specialist inpatient and community services that support mental health, learning 
disabilities and children’s and young people’s mental health services (CAHMS) will transfer 
across to Mersey Care. Other services moving over, alongside just over 3,000 members of staff 
from NWBH, range from physical health to perinatal services and services for older people. As 
part of the formal transaction process, NHS England and Improvement has thoroughly assessed 
all the information and data provided and has issued a risk rating to Mersey Care. The 
transaction has been rated as ‘amber’. 

This means NHSEI found some issues which will need addressing by the enlarged organisation, 
but no issues are serious enough to delay or prevent the transfer taking place. Mersey Care has 
developed a plan to address these issues. The full letter is available on Mersey Care’s website.

Macmillan Right By You

The CCG commissioned Macmillan Right By You service has been given an overwhelmingly 
positive in an independent review carried out by Healthwatch Sefton. Macmillan Right By You 
provides holistic support to people in Sefton living with or affected by cancer through the 
Macmillan Community Navigator team, based in north and south Sefton. Healthwatch carried out 
a review of the service in November 2020 and found that client experience was overwhelmingly 
positive. This small scale review spoke to 19 clients and an overview of results is as follows:

 100% of clients engaged would recommend this service to others
 100% of clients felt comfortable in having a say and felt involved in discussing their 

support needs
 Overall experience was rated as ‘excellent’ and ‘very good’
 17 of the 19 clients had received support during the covid-19 pandemic
 100% of clients told us that the information and support provided had helped them to 

remain or be more independent

You can read the full report here https://healthwatchsefton.co.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2021/04/HWS-An-independent-review-of-the-Right-by-You-service-FINAL.pdf

Page 35

Agenda Item 7

https://healthwatchsefton.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/HWS-An-independent-review-of-the-Right-by-You-service-FINAL.pdf
https://healthwatchsefton.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/HWS-An-independent-review-of-the-Right-by-You-service-FINAL.pdf


8

Staff Friends and Family Test (FFT) for provider organisations

On 21 May, NHSE/I wrote to providers with an outline of how the Staff Friends and Family (FFT) 
Test would be rolled out this year. Last year FFT was suspended due to the response to the 
pandemic. Building on the People Pulse, the national pulse survey introduced last year, NHSE/I 
is changing the Staff FFT guidance so that it will now refer to the Quarterly Staff Survey (QSS). 
Trust will be required to participate in the QSS which now replaces the Staff FFT. This has a 
phased introduction, therefore during Quarter 1 2021-2022 only organisations utilising the People 
Pulse participated in the QSS. However, from July 2021, all provider organisations are required 
to implement this new survey. Formal guidance for the Quarterly Staff Survey is going through its 
final stages of approval. In the interim, NHSE/I has issued the following guidelines:

 On a quarterly basis (except for Quarter 3), during the months of April, July and January, 
each trust will need to ask staff the nine engagement theme questions from the annual 
NHS staff survey.

 All staff are to be provided with the opportunity to take part in the Quarterly Staff Survey 
during each of these quarters.

 The method of data collection is flexible and to be decided by each trust individually. 
Trusts can choose to utilise the national People Pulse, existing internal surveys, or their 
current Staff FFT provider.

 If a trust chooses to use the national People Pulse, there is no requirement to submit the 
data. The data will be submitted centrally.

 For other methods of data collection, trusts will need to submit the data on the Strategic 
Data Collection Service, as previously completed for the Staff FFT.

 Nationally, the results will be available one month after submitting the data. This allows 
for the data to be validated, quality assured and published nationally. Locally, the results 
can be published and used before the national publication.

 The Quarterly Staff Survey will run alongside the annual NHS staff survey, providing a 
 more regular insight into the working experience of our NHS people at a high level.  

Collection of GP Data for Planning and Research to start on 1 September 

Data held in the GP medical records of patients is used every day to support health and care 
planning and research in England, helping to find better treatments and improve outcomes for 
everyone. 

An improved national GP data collection system is being introduced on 1 September 2021 to 
further support vital health and care research and planning. For the past 10 years NHS Digital 
has collected patient data from all GP practices using a system called the General Practice 
Extraction Service (GPES). This system is old and is being replaced with the General Practice 
Data for Planning and Research (GPDPR) data collection. This new system will take patient data 
from practices on a daily basis once it launches on 1 September. 

Patient data already helps to decide what new health and care services are required in a local 
area, informs clinical guidance and policy, and supports researching and developing cures for 
serious illnesses, such as heart disease, diabetes, and cancer. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



9

In addition to replacing what GPES already does, the GPDPR will also help to support the 
planning and commissioning of health and care services, the development of health and care 
policy, public health monitoring and interventions (including coronavirus (COVID-19) and enable 
many different areas of research, such as the long term impact of coronavirus, inequalities in 
healthcare and developing cures for serious illnesses.  

You can find out more about this here https://digital.nhs.uk/news-and-events/latest-
news/collection-of-gp-data-for-planning-and-research-to-go-ahead-on-1-september-2021

Relocation of CCG headquarters

We continue to work with Informatics Merseyside and Sefton Council to complete the relocation 
of our CCG headquarters to Magdalene House in Bootle. We vacated Merton House in mid-
March and our medicines management team and key administrative staff have been working 
from the fourth floor at Magdalene as an interim measure. We will have permanent premises on 
the first floor once the structural adaptations to the office space have been completed and the IT 
systems are in place. We had hoped for a return to office based working, albeit a mixed model of 
home on site working, from the 1 July. However, work with the media provider is ongoing. In 
addition, we continue to be compliant with COVID-19 secure guidelines to ensure the safety of 
staff. In the meantime the CCGs and Sefton Council continue to work collaboratively to support a 
return to office based working as soon as this is practically possible.

Governing Body meetings  

The next virtual Governing Body meetings take place in September. Meetings are recorded and 
published on our CCG websites to view afterwards. Although members of the public are not able 
to attend, questions can be submitted in advance and will addressed by the governing bodies at 
the start of the formal session. As usual, any questions and responses are published after the 
meetings in the note pack. 

The meetings take place as follows:

 NHS Southport and Formby CCG - Wednesday 1 September

 NHS South Sefton CCG - Thursday 2 September

Any questions should be submitted by midday on the day of the meetings using the following 
emails southportandformby.ccg@nhs.net or southsefton.ccg@nhs.net You can find out more 
information about governing bodies and view meeting papers from each CCG website using the 
links at the end of this briefing.

Visit the CCGs’ websites for more about their work www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk or 
www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk, follow them on Twitter @NHSSSCCG or 
@NHSSFCCG or see a range of short films on You Tube for NHSSSCCG or NHS SFCCG 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7

https://digital.nhs.uk/news-and-events/latest-news/collection-of-gp-data-for-planning-and-research-to-go-ahead-on-1-september-2021
https://digital.nhs.uk/news-and-events/latest-news/collection-of-gp-data-for-planning-and-research-to-go-ahead-on-1-september-2021
mailto:southportandformby.ccg@nhs.net
mailto:southsefton.ccg@nhs.net
http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/
https://twitter.com/NHSSSCCG
https://twitter.com/nhssfccg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCVF6RjsbZXnXFmoHqMzSJnQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC3zskxhEM5dWeJtypBBmTOA


This page is intentionally left blank



Main Provider Performance

March 2021

The following slides present performance against key strategic, NHS constitution, quality 

and safety indicators for the main providers the two CCGs commission from.   

Time periods vary for the indicators presented, and are indicated in the tables. 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 8



NHS Southport & Formby CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (Southport & 

Ormskirk, cumultive YTD) 
Mar-21 87.4%

93.0%

(Improvement Plan)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Mar-21 91.3% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (Southport & 

Ormskirk Cumulative YTD)
Mar-21 80.0% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (Southport & Ormskirk, 

cumulative YTD)
Mar-21 96.8% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (Southport & 

Ormskirk, in month snaphot position)
Mar-21 81.5% 92%

C.Difficile (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative 

YTD)
Mar-21 34 16

MRSA (Southport & Ormskirk, cumulative YTD) Mar-21 2 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit, Southport & Ormskirk, monthly 

snapshot position)

Feb-21 29.2% 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(Southport & Ormskirk, monthly snapshot 

position)

Feb-21 28.6% 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Mar-21 00:07:12 <=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4            

Mar-21
100.0% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-21 0.52%

 1.59% per month Qtr 1-3 

1.83% per month Qtr 4   

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-21 42.1% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4            

Mar-21
100.0% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4            

Mar-21
100.0% 90%

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



Southport & Ormskirk Hospital NHS Trust
Friends & Family

*Friends & Family Data has not been available since February 2020

Measure
Time 

Period

Southport & 

Ormskirk
England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Feb-20 17.4% 25.0%

Inpatient Recommended Feb-20 95.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Feb-20 2.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Feb-20 24.9% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Feb-20 90.0% 84.0%

A&E Not Recommended Feb-20 6.0% 10.0%

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



NHS Southport & Formby CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access
Services were repurposed to provide COVID Hub in April and May, therefore 

there is no data to report for these two months.

296 24 133 133 32 0 183

61.67% 8.1% 27.7% 27.7% 6.7% 0.0% 38.1%

587 36 301 292 63 63 70

63.80% 6.1% 32.7% 31.7% 6.8% 6.8% 7.6%

888 44 457 381 131 142 234

66.02% 5.0% 34.0% 28.3% 9.7% 10.6% 17.4%

833 33 428 391 117 137 241

63.39% 4.0% 32.6% 29.8% 8.9% 10.4% 18.3%

989 32 287 251 102 129 162

70.29% 3.2% 20.4% 17.8% 7.2% 9.2% 11.5%

1503 49 325 265 107 129 163

106.44% 3.3% 23.0% 18.8% 7.6% 9.1% 11.5%

926 34 293 191 96 129 139 17

69.99% 3.7% 22.1% 14.4% 7.3% 9.8% 10.5% 1.3%

978 32 308 228 104 150 112 20

63.63% 3.3% 20.0% 14.8% 6.8% 9.8% 7.3% 1.3%

997 30 304 222 115 128 144 25

73.80% 3.0% 22.5% 16.4% 8.5% 9.5% 10.7% 1.9%

1175 35 351 275 109 149 186 30

77.46% 3.0% 23.1% 18.1% 7.2% 9.8% 12.3% 2.0%

877 34 351 275 220 149 186 30

75.54% 3.9% 30.2% 23.7% 18.9% 12.8% 16.0% 2.6%

Mar-21

Apr-21 1161 72.61% Apr-21

Jan-21 1537 61.55% Jan-21

Breakdown of 

Appointments

Oct-20

Nov-20

Dec-20

Mar-21 1517 75.15%

Oct-20 1407 68.02%

Nov-20 1412 102.97%

Dec-20 1323 67.42%

Utilisation
Southport 

& Formby
Booked DNA

MH 

Pactitioner

Appointments 

Available
PhysioGP

Advanced Nurse 

Practitioner

Practice 

Nurse

Health Care 

Assistant
Month

480 56.67%

920 59.89%

62.75%

Feb-21 1351 71.58% Feb-21

Sep-20

1345

60.88%1314

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

Jul-20

Aug-20

Sep-20

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

Jul-20

Aug-20

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



NHS South Sefton CCG

Key Performance Area
Time 

Period
Performance Target Trend

A&E 4hour Waits, All Types (LUHFT, 

Cumulative YTD)
Mar-21 85.9%

88%

(Improvement Plan)

Cancer 2 Week Waits (LUHFT, Cumulative 

YTD)
Mar-21 91.7% 93%

Cancer 62 Day - Screening (LUHFT, Cumulative 

YTD)
Mar-21 70.8% 90%

Cancer 31 Day (LUHFT, Cumulative YTD) Mar-21 94.8% 96%

RTT -18 Weeks Incomplete (LUHFT, in month 

snapshot position)
Mar-21 63.4% 92%

C.Difficile (LUHFT, Cumulative YTD) Mar-21 112 109

MRSA (LUHFT, Cumulative YTD) Mar-21 4 0

Stroke (80% of Pts spending 90% of time on 

Stroke Unit) (LUHFT, monthly snapshot 

position)

Mar-21 - 80%

%  TIA assessed and treated within 24 hours 

(LUHFT, monthly snapshot position)
Mar-21 - 60%

Ambulance Category 1 Mean 7 minute 

response time (CCG LEVEL)
Mar-21 00:07:10 <=7 Minutes

Mental Health: Care Programme Approach 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4            

Mar-21
83.3% 95%

Mental Health: IAPT 16.8% Access (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-21 0.63%

1.59% per month Qtr 1-3

1.83% per month Qtr 4

Mental Health: IAPT 50% Recovery (CCG 

LEVEL)
Mar-21 38.3% 50%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <6 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4            

Mar-21
100.0% 75%

Mental Health: IAPT waiting <18 weeks 

(Quarterly)

Qtr 4            

Mar-21
100.0% 90%

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 8



Liverpool University Hospital site
Friends and Family

*Friends & Family Data has not been available since February 2020

Measure
Time 

Period
LUHFT England Average Trend

Inpatient – response Feb-20 19.3% 25.0%

Inpatient Recommended Feb-20 94.0% 96.0%

Inpatient Not Recommended Feb-20 4.0% 2.0%

A&E – response Feb-20 17.8% 12.2%

A&E Recommended Feb-20 88.0% 84.0%

A&E Not Recommended Feb-20 10.0% 10.0%

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 8



NHS South Sefton CCG
7 Day GP Extended Access

There was an error in the data provided due to a change in the IT system which combined the 7 Day Access and 

Extended Hours data together for Jul to Sep. The revised data is currently being produced.

215 5 65 42 4 0

14.2% 2.3% 30.23% 19.53% 1.86% 0.00%

391 5 82 63 26 0

25.0% 1.3% 20.97% 16.11% 6.65% 0.00%

690 47 186 162 85 257

43.9% 6.8% 26.96% 23.48% 12.32% 37.25%

1510 130 375 299 178 262

80.1% 8.6% 24.83% 19.80% 11.79% 17.35%

1493 137 374 549 250 320

80.0% 9.2% 25.05% 36.77% 16.74% 21.43%

1463 197 319 488 238 339

70.8% 13.5% 21.80% 33.36% 16.27% 23.17%

1481 154 310 474 237 391

77.6% 10.4% 20.93% 32.01% 16.00% 26.40%

1457 124 317 431 260 413

88.5% 8.5% 21.76% 29.58% 17.84% 28.35%

1604 153 252 410 330 541

83.3% 9.5% 15.71% 25.56% 20.57% 33.73%

Advanced Nurse 

Practitioner

Practice 

Nurse
GPMonth

Nov-20 72.67%

Dec-20 61.31%

Nov-20

Dec-20

1866

2065

Jul-20

Sep-20

Physio

13.82%

24.68%

South 

Sefton

Appointments 

Available
DNA UtilisationBooked

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

Apr-20

May-20

Jun-20

1519

1564

1572 40.90%

Oct-20 1885 73.21% Oct-20

Aug-20

Sep-20

Jul-20

Aug-20

Feb-21 1646 80.98% Feb-21

Jan-21 1909 69.51% Jan-21

Mar-21 1926 75.34% Mar-21

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 22 June 2021

Subject: Cabinet Member Reports – March – May 2021

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To submit the Cabinet Member – Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - 
Health and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

Recommendation:

That the Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care and the Cabinet Member - Health 
and Wellbeing reports relating to the remit of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted.

Reasons for the Recommendation:

In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

No alternative options have been considered because the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member Reports to be 
submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

Any financial implications associated with the Cabinet Member reports which are 
referred to in this update are contained within the respective reports.

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



2

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 
Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. Any 
climate emergency implications arising from the consideration of reports referred 
to in the Work Programme will be contained in such reports when they are 
presented to Members at the appropriate time.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. The Cabinet 
Member updates provides information on activity within Councillor Cummins’ and 
Councillor Moncur’s portfolios during the previous three-month period. Any 
reports relevant to their portfolios considered by the Cabinet, Cabinet Member or 
Committees during this period would contain information as to how such reports 
contributed to the Council’s Core Purpose.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: As above

Commission, broker and provide core services: As above

Place – leadership and influencer: As above

Drivers of change and reform: As above

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: As above

Greater income for social investment: As above

Cleaner Greener: As above

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



3

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Cabinet Member Update Reports are not subject to FD/LD consultation.  Any 
specific financial and legal implications associated with any subsequent reports 
arising from the attached Cabinet Member update reports will be included in those 
reports as appropriate

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable 

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:

Appendix A - Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care - update report
Appendix B - Cabinet Member – Health and Wellbeing – update report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 In order to keep Overview and Scrutiny Members informed, the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board has agreed for relevant Cabinet Member 
Reports to be submitted to appropriate Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

1.2 Attached to this report, for information, are the most recent Cabinet Member 
reports for the Adult Social Care and Health and Wellbeing portfolios.

Page 49

Agenda Item 9

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

-1-

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE REPORT
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care and Health)

22nd June 2021

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Paul Cummins Adult Social Care May 2021

1. Care Homes 

Vaccination Update

Although we have worked hard to vaccinate all our Care Home staff and residents, and 
have achieved a 94.9% rate for residents, and 81.4% for staff overall, this is the second 
highest rate in the Liverpool City Region. There are 7 out of 131 homes with below 
average rates of vaccination for staff and residents that we are now targeting support to 
plan with them how this is addressed. Work continues to provide full vaccinations to 
learning disability services. Domiciliary care workers vaccination rate is at 76% overall. 

We are pleased to be able to report we are now in a sustained period of zero outbreaks 
in our Care homes. We continue to support with changes to visiting guidance to Care 
Homes. We also have zero homes reporting issues with sustainable PPE supply, and 
have confirmation that PPE supplies will be available to Care Homes at no cost until 
March 2022 through the Government portal. 

2.  Adult Social Care Budget 

We have concluded the 2021/22 fee consultation and will be informing homes of a rise 
of 2.03% to 3.06% per weekly fee. 

The finalised position will be reported to Cabinet in July. Application for reserves have 
also been made to address potential pressures in the next financial year. The 2020/21 
budget had a reduction of £3.3m of savings to contribute to the overall Council budget 
position which were achieved.

External grants - the 2020/21 year saw financial support from the Government (DHSC) 
in Infection Control, Rapid Test funding and Workforce Capacity grants. These grants 
totalled over £11m with a requirement to passport to providers.

Fee consultations (2021/22) for Care Home and Community Services (Domiciliary 
Care, Supported Living etc) have concluded and the fee proposals for Care Homes have 
been published as a decision.

3. Adult Safeguarding 

The Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Board will cease to exist as from 30th June 2021. 
To meet statutory requirements Sefton will be establishing the Board from this date.

The Merseyside Safeguarding Adults Review Group will continue to function across the 
larger footprint to allow for a standardised approach to Care Act 2014 s44 criteria. The 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A

-2-

SAR group will continue to be chaired by Merseyside Police, and is made up of multi-
authority/agency safeguarding leads across the four authorities. The purpose of the 
group is to consider cases where an adult with care and support needs dies as a result 
of abuse or neglect, and there is concern that partner agencies could have worked more 
effectively to protect the adult.  There is also to be the creation of a Merseyside Good 
Practice/Shared Learning Group.

Membership at Sefton Board level will be sought at a sufficiently strategic level across 
the partnership to ensure that decisions can be made promptly that will lead to developing 
the preventative agenda, and optimising existing safeguarding services that are currently 
delivered across Sefton.

The work objectives of the Board will be underpinned by four sub groups, chaired by an 
individual Board member, and vice chaired by an individual known to champion adult 
safeguarding work within their respective setting. Opportunities to participate in sub 
group work is to be across the partnership, engaging with front line practitioners to ensure 
that all identified learning is cascaded effectively.  

4. Operational Pressures 

Southport and Ormskirk and Liverpool University Hospital Trusts are no longer 
experiencing the admission of Covid patients experienced during the last wave, 
nonetheless, there has been in recent weeks a surge of activity which has challenged 
the ‘front door’ of health and social care services across the borough. The Walk-in Centre 
at Litherland escalated at their highest level on 4 May and was reported as close to 
closing, whilst there has been sustained demand at Emergency Departments at Aintree 
and Southport Hospitals across the reporting period. The systems have struggled with 
the number of minor presentations attending Emergency Departments.  Themes include 
the significant number of younger patients with mental health issues. As a consequenc, 
the local authority commissioners and commissioners from Sefton’s Clinical 
Commissioning Groups have continued to work as one team to prevent delays in hospital 
discharges at Southport and Aintree and ensure wherever possible hospital admission is 
avoided. 

5. Mental Health Services 

Alternatives to Crisis provision in Sefton - Crisis Café

Sefton’s first Mental Health Crisis Café will go live in July and will be located on 
Mornington Road, Southport and will be facilitated by Sefton CVS.

The North Sefton Café will be supported by Rethink and Real Talk CIC and will embrace 
a wider cross referral network that will include Citizens Advice Bureau, Brighter Living 
Partnership, Parenting 2000, Living Well Sefton, Southport Foodbank, High Intensity 
Users Project, Community Connectors and North Sefton Social Prescribers.

An open referral process will apply with individuals over the age of 18 being able to self-
refer into the café.

The crisis café will provide two core functions:

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A

-3-

 A place of safety and support for those at high risk of self-harm or suicide who 
would otherwise attend A&E. 

 Facilitation of a Mental Health Champions’ Network of experts by experience. 

Mental Health Recovery Workers

The Council is currently in the process of recruiting two additional Mental Health 
Recovery Support Worker posts, following the successful bid submission to the Cheshire 
and Merseyside STP.  

These posts will enhance capacity within the Mental Health Recovery Team which is a 
boroughwide service providing intensive recovery-based support and reablement 
interventions to Sefton residents under the care of secondary mental health services.  
The service uses a strengths-based approach and is time limited and goal orientated 
with the aim of improving service users’ confidence, independence, social inclusion and 
mental wellbeing.

Sefton Mental Health Review

A strategic review of mental health services has also commenced and will take forward 
recommendations from Sefton’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

The purpose of the review is to work in partnership across sectors and services to 
redesign and maximise delivery. The first stage of the review is focussing upon 
intelligence held by all agencies to review areas around access, experience, demand 
and capacity, models of care and opportunities to transform at place.  The review also 
encompasses the wider determinants of health including, housing, employment, benefit 
and welfare advice and understanding the impact of COVID 19.
Further updates will be provided as the review progresses.

6. Digital Strategy and Technology Enabled Care

The strategy for Technology Enabled Care has now been produced with wide 
engagement from across the Council and people who use social care services. The 
strategy will be presented to Council in the coming weeks. 

The area of focus will be to ensure that as many people as possible can and will benefit 
from improved digital provision, develop operational pathways for the delivery of this 
provision. The strategy has identified current gaps in provision and areas for 
improvement including training, mitigation of risk for implementation of digital technology, 
promotion for independent living in the home and implement future provision. The 
emphasis will be to ensure that care and support planning for individuals is improved 
using technology.

Key people who may benefit will be those individuals living at home (and not limited to): -
 Vulnerable and frail older people
 People with dementia
 Children and adults with physical disabilities
 Children and adults with learning disabilities
 Children and Adults Mental health needs 
 Children and adults with Sensory needs

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A

-4-

7. Performance 

Permanent admissions to Care Homes for those aged 65+ decreased from Q3 and are 
lower in Q4 than all previous quarters this year. These figures are likely heavily influenced 
by the Covid Pandemic. Admissions to Care Homes for service users aged 18-64 in 
Sefton continue a downward trend from Q4 of last year and Sefton is no longer ranked 
in the worst quartile for this indicator. However, overall, we would have to reduce 
admissions for ages 18-64 by 50% to reach the best quartile nationally.

Adults with Learning Disabilities in paid employment in Sefton has remained at the same 
level as Q3. Sefton continues to be in the worst quartile for this measure. For Sefton to 
move up to the best quartile, we would have to support just under 9% of LD Adults into 
employment - we currently have 2%. The proportion of adults with Learning Disabilities 
in settled accommodation continues to perform in the best quartile for this measure, 
though with a slight downward trajectory from Q2 and 3.

Timely annual reviews have continued to increase quarter on quarter, with over 64% of 
all reviews completed in Q4. For Sefton to move up to best quartile, we would have to 
complete nearly 80% of annual reviews in a rolling 12 months. The backlog of reviews 
has decreased significantly in Q4 putting Sefton just below the best quartile nationally.

The number of carers in receipt of a service continues to be impacted by the Covid 
Pandemic with a significant overall reduction in the services recorded as being provided 
directly to carers.

The performance of equipment being delivered within 7 days for Sefton remains at 99%. 
Assistant Technology (AT) Referrals and Installs in Q4 have increased slightly from Q3. 
Installs in Q4 are at their highest for the year.

Contacts to Information, Advice and Signposting saw a steady rise in Q1, 2 and 3 though 
Q4 shows a slight decrease from the previous quarter. Sefton has significantly improved 
in this measure throughout the previous year.

As noted elsewhere the Covid Pandemic has had a significant impact on clients in Care 
Homes and the homes themselves. Our continued development of our Care Home and 
Extra Care strategy will help support clients and providers as we move out of the current 
crisis.

8. Integration Update 

We reported in the last Scrutiny report that the Department of Health and Social Care 
published its intentions for Integrated Care Systems across England and detailed how 
systems and their constituent organisations will accelerate collaborative ways of working 
in future, considering the key components of an effective integrated care system (and 
the immediate and long-term challenges presented by the Covid-19 pandemic).
From April 2021 this will require all parts of the health and care system to work together 
as Integrated Care Systems, involving:

 Stronger partnerships in local places between the NHS, local government and 
others with a more central role for primary care in providing joined up care;

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A

-5-

 Provider organisations being asked to step forward in formal collaborative 
arrangements that allow them to operate at scale; and

 Developing strategic commissioning through systems with a focus on population 
health outcomes;

 The use of digital and data to drive system working, connect health and care 
providers, improve outcomes and put the citizen at the heart of their own care.

This document also described options for giving ICSs a firmer footing in legislation likely 
to take affect from April 2022 (subject to Parliamentary decision). These proposals sit 
alongside other recommendations aimed at removing legislative barriers to integration 
across health bodies and with social care, to help deliver better care and outcomes for 
patients through collaboration, and to join up national leadership more formally.

The Health and Social Care White Paper outlines the changes that will be need to the 
way in which decisions are governed particularly in relation to services and finances as 
we established more integrated ways of working. This will require a review of current 
decision-making and governance groups. The Informal Health and Wellbeing Board 
(HWBB) was joined at its recent meeting by the Leader of Calderdale Council, Cllr Tim 
Swift to share his experience of becoming a successful Integrated Care System in West 
Yorkshire and Harrogate. The Informal Board also agreed to support from the Local 
Government Association (LGA). This will begin the development needed to maximise the 
HWBB’s impact as the governance board for the emerging Sefton Integrated Care 
Partnership. A group of senior leaders from across health and social care providers has 
been established to ensure that localities and primary care networks (PCNs) are fully 
supported to ensure maximum impact on our communities in improving health and care 
outcomes. 

Plans about the Integrated Care Partnership are being shared with partners and their 
staff as well as being cascaded to Council staff over the next few weeks. Engagement 
has also begun with the Health and Social Care Forum and Every Child Matters Forum. 

9. Complaints Update  

General Overview:

We have received 13 ASC complaints to date this financial year and, at present, we have 
3 enquiries, 4 Ombudsman cases and 7 ASC complaints outstanding. 

We have recently dealt with a case concerning an emergency placement which we 
arranged and, whilst we considered that due process was followed and an appropriate 
decision made, we feel that there are lessons to be learned from the case.  Therefore, 
we will be discussing this case at a practice session to highlight some of the issues with 
staff.  

We have received 43 compliments to date this year (we received 130 last financial year) 
and we are continuing to encourage staff to share the positive feedback with the 
Complaints Team so this can be captured.

With regard to the 4 cases with the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman, we 
have supplied information for 3 cases and are awaiting Draft Decisions (1 concerns the 
safeguarding team, 1 concerns joint working between the social care team and housing 

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX A

-6-

and the final case concerns a Care Home) and 1 case is outstanding as we are awaiting 
the complainant confirming his payment details so recommendation can be completed.

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Adult Social Care) – 22 June 2021

Councillor Portfolio Period of Report

Ian Moncur Health and Wellbeing March – May 21

Staff Flu Immunisation Programme 2020/2021 
Overall uptake of the NHS Flu programme has improved across all cohorts in Sefton 
compared to last year, however, there are pockets of low uptake, particularly for South 
Sefton. The CCG and NHSE are working with partners to improve uptake in these 
instances.

From 1st December 2020, over 50’s are invited to take up the NHS Flu offer and can 
attend GP or Pharmacy. In early January 2021, NHSE have written individually to this 
cohort, to encourage uptake due to low response in December. 

Sefton Staff Flu programme which has been provided via Community Pharmacy this 
year has seen approximately 600 staff take up the offer. Lower uptake was expected 
compared to previous years due to the number of staff who are currently working from 
home and because of the widening of the NHS Flu programme to include over 50’s. 

On the run up to Christmas, on site clinics were delivered at Hawthorne Road and in 
two schools’ settings with good uptake at each. The programme will continue in to 
February and promotion amongst staff continues. 

School Aged Flu Programme delivered in school settings is completed, with 
community catch up sessions taking place in locality settings. 

15,500 children have received the vaccine so far, 2967 have opted out of the 
programme and 4286 have not return consent. It is reported across Cheshire and 
Merseyside that opt out numbers have been influenced by negative vaccination stories 
circulating social media. Those who haven’t sent consent have been contacted and 
offered a community appointment with good response.  Electronic consent options are 
being explored for future programmes. 

Public Health Service Plan
I have received a public health update report on the PH service plan outlining priority 
activities for public health and wellbeing for the next 12 months. 

The plan includes reflection of the achievements of the last 12 months and a summary 
of the statutory requirements of the public health team. I have noted that the plan will 
need to be adaptable to the changing landscape given the magnitude of the current 
Covid-19 pandemic and will continually be updated as work is prioritised and 
reprioritised over the coming months. The focus and approach will be one of co-
production and co-collaboration within the context of wider Council commissioning 
priorities, as well as the health protection response for Covid-19, community recovery 
programme and Welfare Reform.

I advised for the report to be presented to O&S as an agenda item.

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B

Mental Health in Schools
Early in 2020 the Sefton Emotional Health and Wellbeing partnership – led by Public 
Health and the CCGs - were successful in securing £740k for two Mental Health 
Support Teams (MHST) to work in Sefton schools.

Each MHST will support 8000 individuals or 20 schools.  However, as the school and 
college population of Sefton is 37,500, not all education settings could receive support 
from the teams initially, however, the government is committed to providing future 
funding for every school and setting in England, and the partnership will bid for 
additional MHST funding as opportunities arise.

The focus and location of the Sefton MHSTs have been based on an assessment of 
the emotional wellbeing needs of children and young people in the area:

 MHST 1 - covers south Sefton and will work to counteract high levels of 
deprivation and health inequality.

 MHST 2 - support all transition year groups in other areas of Sefton i.e. years 
6/7 and years 11/12.

New Education Mental Health Practitioners (EMHPs) will be trained at Edge Hill 
University in evidenced-based therapies and interventions. They will begin working 
with Sefton schools in April 2021. In April 2021 we have also received confirmation 
that the bid for a 3rd Mental Health Support Team has been successful. Meaning from 
2023 over 50% of Sefton schools/colleges will be supported, which is higher coverage 
than the vast majority of local authorities in the north west.

Wellbeing for Education Return
The Department of Education has allocated Sefton funding to implement a new 
national training offer within all schools. The training and resources are intended to 
support education staff to promote children and young people, teachers and parents 
and carers’ mental wellbeing and resilience and aid mental health recovery, in light of 
the impact of COVID-19 and lockdown.

The training packages has been developed by the Anna Freud Centre and 
complements much of the work we have been doing with schools in Sefton over the 
last 2 years, and its implementation is being led by Public Health.

All 18 sessions have been held digital, using Teams and Eventbrite to organise and 
hold sessions in two phases. Over 60 schools have undertaken the training offer. All 
unspent money will be used to carry out further training covering subjects matter 
requested by schools until the end of 2021. We have been made aware that additional 
funding is to be provided to continue activity with schools and colleges into 2022.

Kooth and QWell
Kooth has been available in Sefton for over 18 months and the number of users has 
grown to over 1500 during that time. Following a successful evaluation of the service 
in the summer of 2020, the service has been re-procured on a 3-year contract, with 
the option to extend for another year.

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B
The investment by the partnership of Public Health, the CCG and Children’s Social 
Care has also increased, allowing the service to support more children and young 
people.  The age range of those who can benefit from the service has also been 
widened from 11-18 to 10-25 year olds.

The QWell service - an adult version of Kooth - is also available to anyone working in 
an education setting in Sefton, the Council workforce, and care home and domically 
staff. Engagement activity has taken place resulting in significant increases in both 
new users and take up of each service in the first three months on 2021.

Living Well Sefton Service
Sefton CVS hosts and coordinates the Living Well Sefton Programme, funded through 
Public Health, to contribute towards the reduction of health inequalities experienced 
by vulnerable groups and those living in our most deprived communities in Sefton. The 
LWS service is a partnership between Sefton CVS, May Logan Centre, Netherton 
Feelgood Factory, Brighter Living Partnership, Citizens Advice Sefton, Sefton Carers’ 
Centre, Smoke Free Sefton and Active Lifestyles, in addition to 20+ Living Well Sefton 
Neighbourhood Partners.

At the initial stage of the pandemic in March 2020, Public Health worked with the 
Sefton Communities Cell and LWS to define how the LWS would be fit for purpose to 
respond to the acute phase of the pandemic. Public Health initiated a contract variation 
to ensure that the LWS could be immediately responsive to community need which 
included setting up shopping services to reach shielding residents, mobilising 
volunteers to deliver telephone befriending, responding to changing and emerging 
community need through signposting/shielding clients from Council lists to adapting 
the support available to existing LWS clients. Telephone befriending became crucial 
and was often the only way to ensure vulnerable clients had support. 

The COVID Wellness check was used widely by LWS Mentors, Social Prescribers, 
Community Connectors and volunteers to evaluate a client’s wellbeing and practical 
needs to ensure they could stay safe and well. The partnership working between LWS 
teams and the wider health teams within CVS, in responding to signposting and 
shielded referrals from the Council, ensured a joined up, responsive service quickly 
met the needs of the communities. 

The LWS led on the community response for Shielding or Clinically Extremely 
Vulnerable (CEV) residents and provided signposting referral requests for help and 
support across a wide range of services such as food shopping, picking up 
medications and social contact. COVID response work, includes overseeing volunteer 
led shopping services, befriending services and welfare checks. 

As we move from the response phase into recovery, the LWS will remain central to 
the community response and support those individuals and communities most in need. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B
The service was originally conceived to support the 20% most deprived wards; 
however, the pandemic has illustrated how the health inequalities gap is widening and 
dependency on services such as food banks and the CAB, highlight the far-reaching 
impacts of the pandemic which have had a significant and detrimental effect in our 
communities. The LWS as a key commissioned service is woven into the health 
improvement delivery element of the current Public Health Service Plan and will 
continue to deliver tailored support and intervention in line with community need to 
support the health and wellbeing for the people of Sefton in line with pandemic 
recovery in 2021 and beyond.

COVID-19 Update
This report covers the period February to May, during which time Sefton transitioned 
out of national restrictions, and moved through steps one and two, and into step three 
of the Government’s Roadmap Out of Lockdown.

At the start of February, the number of new cases of Coronavirus in Sefton averaged 
121 per day but was following a steady downwards trend after the peak in early 
January, associated with spread of the more transmissible variant VOC-20DEC-01, 
first identified in Kent. This reducing trend continued after the reopening of schools on 
8th March and permission for outdoor mixing in groups of up to six or two households 
from 29th March. Non-essential retail and outdoor hospitality reopened on the 12th April 
and incidence in Sefton fell to its lowest in 2021 to date around one week later (6 new 
cases per day). 

Towards the end of April, incidence began to increase steadily. A cluster of cases with 
ongoing spread was identified in Formby and was the main driver of the rise in Sefton’s 
overall incidence rate. Indicators showing the presence of another variant as well as 
the dominant variant were identified and shortly after variant B1.6.1.7.2 was 
designated a Variant of Concern (VOC-21Apr-02) in the UK and by WHO, and 
genomic sequencing confirmed its presence in Sefton.  Evidence suggests that this 
variant, first detected in India, may be more transmissible than the nationally dominant 
variant, VOC-20DEC-01, but full vaccination offers similar protection from 
symptomatic COVID-19 illness.

Early and intensive outbreak management and contact tracing in advance of these 
developments curtailed onward transmission, and incidence began to reduce in the 
second week of May, having peaked at around 22 cases per day. Outbreak control 
work was supported by targeted asymptomatic PCR testing and sequencing focused 
on the L37 area, which began 14th May.

Factors which supported initial, early suppression of this outbreak were: early 
identification through routine monitoring and local contact tracing, detailed and diligent 
follow-up of cases and contacts by the Sefton Health Protection and Contacting Team 
with Public Health England, applying learning and experience from previous surge 
testing. 

The community most affected had the highest uptake of vaccination in eligible groups 
in Sefton, and the increase in cases was largely amongst age groups who had not 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B
been vaccinated and have the lowest risk of serious illness from COVID-19.  A 
significant proportion of cases were from Sefton’s more affluent communities - well 
equipped to overcome the challenges and consequences from testing and isolating. 
Hospitalisations and deaths associated with Coronavirus typically lag two to four 
weeks behind the trend in infection rates, but currently remain very low - there have 
been no deaths within 28 days of a positive test since the end of April.  

On 10th May, the national Coronavirus Alert Level was formally reduced to three, 
indicating that Coronavirus is in general circulation, but epidemiological indicators 
support gradual relaxation of restrictions on mixing and contact. On 17th May, England 
moved to step three of the Government road map, which includes re-opening of 
accommodation, indoor entertainment and sport and allows a group of six, or two 
households/bubbles to meet indoors, while limits on close contact and mass 
gatherings remains. 

Opportunities for more mixing and contact favour the spread of Coronavirus, however 
at time of writing it is too early to see a response in the Sefton’s case numbers and 
incidence has returned to around 8 new cases per day – similar to levels at the end of 
April 2021 and end of August 2020. Cases of both variants of concern continue to be 
detected through routine and surge testing and genomic sequencing.

0-19 Commissioning
The contract for Sefton’s 0-19 Service which is provided by North West Boroughs is 
due to expire on 31st March 2022. In normal circumstances this would initiate a 
recommissioning process including the procurement of a new service. However, 
Sefton PH feel that it would be short-sighted to re-commission the service at the 
current time due to the impact of COVID-19 on service delivery and on Sefton families. 

 The service has been working in business continuity for the last 12 months, 
adapting and responding to demands and restrictions. Currently, the service is 
going through a period of recovery and restoration which needs to be fully 
exercised to ensure stability in service delivery. 

 The impact of COVID-19 on children, young people and families is still 
emerging, therefore to ensure the future 0-19 service is responsive to local 
need, time to fully assess those needs is optimal. 

 The National Healthy Child Programme (HCP) which provides structure, and 
which details mandated components of 0-19 HCP, has been under review over 
the last year, with new iterations paused to consider the impact of COVID-19 
on children and families. The first phase of revised guidance has been 
published with greater emphasis on inequalities and intensive support for 
vulnerable families. PHE are now working with regional Public Heath Children’s 
leads to develop a robust framework for delivery and consistency across the 
children’s system. Time to develop this thinking will shape local service delivery.

 Other factors to consider include wider transformation, including ICG’s and 
NWBH transitioning in to MerseyCare from 1st June 2021.

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX B
The preferred option is to extend the existing contract for a further 1-year period, giving 
more time for the impact of COVID-19 to be fully realised and stability of the existing 
service to be resumed. This has been explored with procurement and legal colleagues 
across the Council. A paper seeking permission to follow this route will go to July 
Cabinet. 

Leisure
Our 6 Leisure Centres have been closed to the public due to the pandemic. Staff have 
been redeployed into other critical Council services such as Green Sefton, Cleansing 
services, or Cemeteries and Crematoria. The centres have supported the testing 
programme with Bootle, Litherland and Splashworld being Covid test centres. Dunes 
was used as a hub for staff carrying out the surge testing in Southport.

From March the centres have gradually reopened following the government roadmap 
offering school swimming, outside group sports, then from April gym and swim and 
most recently in May gym classes are now available for members to book onto.

Our wider Leisure offer has also begun to return to normal with programmes and 
classes moving from virtual sessions to physical sessions. As the roadmap eases 
more programmes, particularly the Public Health and NHS funded programmes will 
restart or move to physical delivery. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 9



Report to: Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

(Adult Social Care 
and Health)

Date of Meeting: 22 July 2021

Subject: Work Programme 2021/22, Scrutiny Review Topics and Key 
Decision Forward Plan

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: All

Cabinet Portfolio: Adult Social Care
Health and Wellbeing

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To seek the views of the Committee on the draft Work Programme for 2021/22; to 
report on progress of the Mental Health Issues Working Group; to identify any items for 
pre-scrutiny scrutiny by the Committee from the Key Decision Forward Plan; to receive 
an update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee; and to note the update by Healthwatch Sefton.

Recommendations:

That:

(1) the Work Programme for 2021/22, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be 
agreed, along with any additional items to be included and thereon be agreed;

(2) the progress made by the Mental Health Issues Working Group be noted;

(3) items for pre-scrutiny from the Key Decision Forward Plan which fall under the 
remit of the Committee, as set out in Appendix C to the report, be considered 
and any agreed items be included in the work programme referred to in (1) 
above;

(4) the update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee be noted; and

(5) the recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton, as outlined in Appendix 
D to the report, be noted.

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To determine the Work Programme of items to be considered during the Municipal Year 
2021/22; to identify scrutiny review topics which would demonstrate that the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny “adds value” to the Council; and to comply with a decision of the 
Committee to update on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.

The pre-scrutiny process assists Cabinet Members to make effective decisions by 
examining issues before making formal decisions.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

No alternative options have been considered as the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
needs to approve its Work Programme; to potentially consider scrutiny review topics; and 
consider other activities in relation to the work of the Committee.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Any financial 
implications arising from the consideration of a key decision or relating to a 
recommendation arising from a Working Group review will be reported to Members at the 
appropriate time.

(A) Revenue Costs – see above

(B) Capital Costs – see above

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): None

Legal Implications: None

Equality Implications: There are no equality implications. 
Climate Emergency Implications:

The recommendations within this report will 
Have a positive impact No
Have a neutral impact Yes
Have a negative impact No
The Author has undertaken the Climate Emergency training for 
report authors

Yes

There are no direct climate emergency implications arising from this report. Any 
climate emergency implications arising from the consideration of reports referred to in 
the Work Programme will be contained in such reports when they are presented to 
Members at the appropriate time.

Page 64

Agenda Item 10



Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: None directly applicable to this report. Reference in the 
Work Programme to the approval of, and monitoring of recommendations, will 
contribute towards protecting vulnerable members of Sefton’s communities.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: None directly applicable to this report 

Commission, broker and provide core services: None directly applicable to this report 

Place – leadership and influencer: None directly applicable to this report.

Drivers of change and reform: None directly applicable to this report 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: None directly applicable to this report 

Greater income for social investment: None directly applicable to this report 

Cleaner Greener: None directly applicable to this report 

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Work Programme and Key Decision Forward Plan Report is not subject to FD/LD 
consultation. Any specific financial and legal implications associated with any 
subsequent reports will be reported to Members as appropriate.

Relevant Heads of Service have been consulted in the preparation of the Work 
Programme for the Committee.

(B) External Consultations 

Not applicable

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Committee meeting.

Contact Officer: Debbie Campbell
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2254
Email Address: debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk 

Appendices:

The following appendices are attached to this report:

 Appendix A - Work Programme for 2021/22;
 Appendix B – Terms of Reference for the Committee (extract from the 

Constitution);

Page 65

Agenda Item 10

mailto:debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk


 Appendix C - Latest Key Decision Forward Plan items relating to this Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee; and

 Appendix D - Update of recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton.

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Introduction/Background

1. WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

1.1 The proposed Work Programme of items to be submitted to the Committee for 
consideration during the Municipal Year 2021/22 is set out at Appendix A to the 
report. The programme has been produced in liaison with the appropriate Heads 
of Service, whose roles fall under the remit of the Committee.

1.2 Members are requested to consider whether there are any other items that they 
wish the Committee to consider, that fall within the terms of reference (set out in 
Appendix B) of the Committee. The Work Programme will be submitted to each 
meeting of the Committee during 2021/22 and updated, as appropriate.

1.3 The Committee is requested to comment on the Work Programme for 
2021/22 and note that additional items may be submitted to the Programme 
at future meetings of the Committee during this Municipal Year.

2. SCRUTINY REVIEW TOPIC 2020/21

2.1 At meeting of the Committee held on 1 September 2020, Members considered 
that a working group could be established to consider mental health services and 
the prevention of issues.

2.2 The Committee:

“RESOLVED: That

(2) a working group be established to consider mental health services and the 
prevention of issues, consisting of Councillors Howard and Roscoe, and Mr. 
Roger Hutchings, Healthwatch;”

2.3 Councillor Roscoe was appointed as the Lead Member for the Working Group and 
meetings have been held as follows:

Meeting Date Activity

10 October 2020 Discussion on the wide remit of mental health and on which 
documents to consider.

Page 66

Agenda Item 10



17 November 
1010

Consideration of various documents and scoping of the review.

8 December 2020 Consideration of various documents and possible witnesses to 
interview.

19 January 2021 Mental Health Service User Interviews.

22 January 2021 Meeting with Mersey Care representative to discuss Integrated 
Care Teams.

Meeting with Mental Health Social Work Team Managers.

2 February 2021 Meeting to discuss findings of discussions held with service 
users, Mersey Care and Mental Health Social Work Team 
Managers.

25 February 2021 Further documents and other information received.

18 March 2021 Discussion with Dr. Frank McGuire, Consultant Clinical 
Psychologist, Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust.

Discussion with Diane Clayton, Strategic Support Officer, Adult 
Social Care, re: developments in the use of ICT for service 
users.

Consideration of Mental Health Spend Comparison Information 
re: Landscape Database.

8 April 2021 Further consideration of Mental Health Spend Comparison 
Information re: Landscape Database.

Consideration of waiting times for Asperger’s assessment.

Consideration of the outcomes of Mersey Care’s interviews with 
2 of the service users interviewed by the Working Group.

17 May 2021 Discussion with Jimmy Cousineau, Mersey Care, re: crisis 
intervention from a clinical perspective

Consideration of documents relating to the Mental Health Act 
White Paper Consultation.

Page 67

Agenda Item 10



Consideration of Mental Health Service Activity Comparison and 
clarification of waiting times for services.

7 June 2021 Further consideration of Mental Health Service Activity 
Comparison and clarification of waiting times for services.

Consideration of Conclusions and Identification of Possible 
Recommendations

The Terms of Reference and Objectives for the review are as follows:

(1) data on the number of people waiting to access services.

(2) a review of previous strategies – what has worked well and what could be 
improved.

(3) how to recommend greater integration.

(4) information on the need for services and the spending profile for services in 
Sefton.

2.4 At the time of drafting this report, a final report of the Working Group is in course 
of preparation and it is anticipated that this will be presented to the Committee at 
its next meeting on 7 September 2021.

2.5 The Lead Member for the Working Group, Councillor Roscoe, has been appointed 
to the Cabinet and is unable to complete the review, as Cabinet Members must 
not sit on Overview and Scrutiny Committees or Working Groups. It is anticipated 
that Councillor Howard will present the final report to the Cabinet and to Council.

2.5 The Committee is requested to note the progress made by the Mental Health 
Issues Working Group;

3. PRE-SCRUTINY OF ITEMS IN THE KEY DECISION FORWARD PLAN

3.1 Members may request to pre-scrutinise items from the Key Decision Forward Plan 
which fall under the remit (terms of reference) of this Committee. The Forward 
Plan, which is updated each month, sets out the list of items to be submitted to the 
Cabinet for consideration during the next four-month period.

3.2 The pre-scrutiny process assists the Cabinet Members to make effective 
decisions by examining issues beforehand and making recommendations prior to 
a determination being made.

3.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board has requested that only those key 
decisions that fall under the remit of each Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
should be included on the agenda for consideration.

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



3.4 The latest Forward Plan, published on 28 May 2021, is attached at Appendix C 
for this purpose. For ease of identification, items listed on the Forward Plan for the 
first time appear as shaded. 

3.5 There are four items within the current Plan that fall under the remit of the 
Committee on this occasion, namely:

 Capital Funding for Short-Term Assessment Unit
 Procurement of Advocacy Provision
 Mental Health Issues Working Group Final Report
 0-19 Healthy Child Programme Commissioning

3.6 Should Members require further information in relation to any item on the Key 
Decision Forward Plan, would they please contact the relevant Officer named 
against the item in the Plan, prior to the Meeting.

3.7 The Committee is invited to consider items for pre-scrutiny from the Key 
Decision Forward Plan as set out in Appendix C to the report, which fall 
under the remit of the Committee and any agreed items be included in the 
Work Programme referred to in (1) above.

4. LIVERPOOL CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

4.1 During the October/November 2019 cycle of meetings, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board and the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees considered a 
report on the guidance produced by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government relating to Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined 
Authorities following on from the Communities and Local Government Select 
Committee’s inquiry into Overview and Scrutiny. This Committee considered the 
matter at its meeting held on 15 October 2019 (Minute No. 32 refers).

4.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board and the four Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees all agreed the recommendations contained in the report, one 
of which being that updates on Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (LCRCA O&S) be included in the Work 
Programme report considered at each Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.

4.3 In accordance with the above decision, information on the LCRCA O&S is set out 
below.

4.4 Role

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee was established by the Combined 
Authority in May 2017 in accordance with the Combined Authorities Order 2017.

The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to:

 Scrutinise the decision and actions taken by the Combined Authority or the 
Metro Mayor;

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



 Provide a “critical friend” to policy and strategy development;
 Undertake scrutiny reviews into areas of strategic importance for the people of 

the Liverpool City Region; and
 Monitor the delivery of the Combined Authority’s strategic plan.

4.5 Membership

The Committee is made up of 3 elected Members from each of the constituent 
Local Authorities of the LCR Combined Authority, along with one elected Member 
from both the Liverpool City Region Liberal Democrat Group and the Liverpool 
City Region Conservative Group.

Sefton’s appointed Members are Councillors Hansen, Howard and Waterfield. 
Councillor Howard is Sefton’s Scrutiny Link.

Councillor Patrick Moloney is the representative of the Liberal Democrat Group on 
the Committee. The Conservative Group nomination is still awaited by the 
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority. 

4.6 Chair and Vice-Chair

The Chair of the LCRCAO&S cannot be a Member of the majority group. The 
Chair will be appointed at the first meeting of the Committee on 14 July 2021. 

4.7 Quoracy Issues

A high number of meetings of the LCRCA O&S have been inquorate. 

The quorum for meetings of the LCRCAO&S is 14, two-thirds of the total number 
of members, 20. This high threshold is not set by the Combined Authority but is 
set out in legislation. 

The Combined Authority’s Monitoring Officer will be looking to work with the 
Monitoring Officers from the other Combined Authorities to identify what problems 
they are experiencing with Scrutiny and how/if they had overcome them. 
Representations to Government would also be considered once all options locally 
to resolve the quorum issue had been exhausted. The CA Monitoring Officer 
would then be able to provide evidence to Government that the quorum level was 
obstructing the work of scrutiny within the CA. 

4.8 Meetings

Information on all meetings and membership of the LCRCAO&S can be obtained 
using the following link:

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0

Latest Meeting - 10 March 2021

The latest meeting of the LCRCAO&S was held on 10 March 2021.

Page 70

Agenda Item 10

https://moderngov.merseytravel.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=365&Year=0


Matters considered at the meeting related to:

 Metro Mayor Steve Rotheram's Update
 Race Equality Declaration of Intent
 Adult Education Budget Programme Update
 Mersey Tidal Project Update

The next meeting of the LCRCAO&S will be held on 30 June 2021 and will take 
the form of a work planning session. 

Details of all meetings can be obtained using the link referred to above.

4.9 The Committee is requested to note the update on the Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

5. HEALTHWATCH SEFTON

5.1 An update of recent activities undertaken by Healthwatch Sefton is attached to this 
report at Appendix D, for information.

5.2 The Committee is requested to note recent activities undertaken by 
Healthwatch Sefton.

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT
APPENDIX A

1
14/06/21

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH)

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22

Date of Meeting

Item

22 JUNE 21
Bootle

07 SEPTEMBER 21 19 OCTOBER 21 04 JANUARY 22 22 FEBRUARY 22

Regular Reports:
Cabinet Member Update Report
(Julie Leahair/Julie Eliot/Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

Work Programme Update
(Debbie Campbell)

X X X X X

CCGs’ Update Report
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Health Provider Performance Dashboard
(CCGs)

X X X X X

Service Operational Reports:
Integrated Care Programme
(Eleanor Moulton)

X

Care Home Strategy
(Deborah Butcher / Eleanor Moulton)

X

Final Report of the Mental Health Issues 
Working Group
(Debbie Campbell)

X

Safeguarding of Adults
(Deborah Butcher)

X

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 10



DRAFT
APPENDIX A

2
14/06/21

Item 22 JUNE 21
Bootle

07 SEPTEMBER 21 19 OCTOBER 21 04 JANUARY 22 22 FEBRUARY 22

Service Operational Reports 
(Continued):
Early Intervention and Prevention
(Deborah Butcher)

X

CCGs’ Updates
Access to General Practice and NHS 111 
Services During the COVID-19 Pandemic

X

Phase 2 Clinical Integration of Haemato-
Oncology Services in North Merseyside

X

NHS Updates:
Current Challenges Faced by Dentistry in 
Light of the Covid 19 Pandemic
(NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI))

X

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 10



APPENDIX B

MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

MEMBERSHIP 

10 Councillors 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

To fulfil all the functions of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee as they relate to Adult 
Social Care and the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 to review and make recommendations for 
improvement in relation to the following functions: 

 Public Health 
 Leisure 
 Welfare Reform 
 Integrated Wellness Service 
 Parks and green spaces (including Allotments, Golf Courses, Trees and Sports 

Pitches, play areas and skate parks) 
 Day care 
 Home care 
 Residential care 
 Respite care 
 Carers 
 Quality 
 Safeguarding 
 Assessments 
 Direct Payments 

Page 75

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C

1

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 JULY 2021 - 30 OCTOBER 2021

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions which the Cabinet, individual Cabinet 
Members or Officers expect to take during the next four month period.  The Plan is rolled forward 
every month and is available to the public at least 28 days before the beginning of each month.

A Key Decision is defined in the Council's Constitution as:

1. any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
approved by the Council and which requires a gross budget expenditure, saving or virement 
of more than £100,000 or more than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater;

2. any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact on a significant 
number of people living or working in two or more Wards

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by 
contacting the relevant officer listed against each Key Decision, within the time period indicated.

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council's Constitution, a Key 
Decision may not be taken, unless:

 it is published in the Forward Plan;
 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and
 if the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting has 

been given.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though 
they have not been included in the Forward Plan in accordance with Rule 26 (General Exception) 
and Rule 28 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules.

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle L20 7AE 
or accessed from the Council's website: www.sefton.gov.uk 

 Council Constitution
 Forward Plan
 Reports on the Key Decisions to be taken
 Other documents relating to the proposed decision may be submitted to the decision making 

meeting and these too will be made available by the contact officer named in the Plan
 The minutes for each Key Decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days after 

having been made

Some reports to be considered by the Cabinet/Council may contain exempt information and will not 
be made available to the public. The specific reasons (Paragraph No(s)) why such reports are 
exempt are detailed in the Plan and the Paragraph No(s) and descriptions are set out below:-

Page 77

Agenda Item 10

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX C

2

1. Information relating to any individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 

 authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or        
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter  arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under, the Authority
5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings
6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes a) to give under any enactment a notice 
under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed  on a person; or b) to make an order or 
direction under any enactment
7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of crime
8. Information falling within paragraph 3 above is not exempt information by virtue of that 
paragraph if it is required to be registered under—

(a) the Companies Act 1985;
(b) the Friendly Societies Act 1974;
(c) the Friendly Societies Act 1992;
(d) the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978;
(e) the Building Societies Act 1986; or
(f) the Charities Act 1993.

9.Information is not exempt information if it relates to proposed development for which the local 
planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992
10. Information which—

(a) falls within any of paragraphs 1 to 7 above; and
(b) is not prevented from being exempt by virtue of paragraph 8 or 9 above,is exempt 

information if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Cabinet and Council which are held 
at the Town Hall, Oriel Road, Bootle or the Town Hall, Lord Street, Southport.  The dates and times 
of the meetings are published on www.sefton.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic Services 
Section on telephone number 0151 934 2068.

NOTE:  
For ease of identification, items listed within the document for the first time will appear shaded.

Dwayne Johnson
Chief Executive

Page 78

Agenda Item 10

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


APPENDIX C

3

FORWARD PLAN INDEX OF ITEMS

Item Heading Officer Contact
Capital Funding for Short-Term 
Assessment Unit

Steve Metcalf steve.metcalf@sefton.gov.uk

Procurement of Advocacy Provision Angela Clintworth angela.clintworth@sefton.gov.uk
Mental Health Issues Working Group 
Final Report

Debbie Campbell debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 
0151 934 2254

0-19 Healthy Child Programme 
Commissioning

Julie Murray julie.murray@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 
3343, Lisa Whittingham 
lisa.whittingham@sefton.gov.uk

Page 79

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C

4

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Capital Funding for Short-Term Assessment Unit  
To seek approval for capital funding to support the 
development of a new Short-term Assessment Unit for up to 
8 residents with complex needs including Learning 
Disabilities and or Autism. The unit will be able to facilitate 
young people as they lead up to and make the transition 
from children to adults’ service provision, by providing a 
consistent standard for the skills, knowledge and 
competencies required in transition. This will also enable us 
to ensure that we meet the Transforming care programme 
intended outcomes which is all about improving health and 
care services so that more people can live in the community, 
with the right support, and close to home whilst reducing the 
number of hospital admissions. The scheme will be built to a 
high specification and incorporate a Technology Enabled 
Care System, be fully accessible and comply with the 
National Autistic Society standards throughout

Decision Maker Cabinet
Council

Decision Expected 29 Jul 2021
16 Sep 2021 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 24/06/2021 to 
29/06/2021.  Reason: Further input is required from officers 
due to changes in the proposal

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Internal officers; CCG’s; Transforming Care Partnership 
Board; Riverside Housing; 
Merseycare Learning Disability Team; Current residents 
who utilise provision across the borough who have a 
Learning Disability; Residents out of borough and or in 
hospital settings; Parents/Carers including older carers; 
Potentially impacted; Autism Sub-Group; Getting Involved 
Group; elected members 

Page 80

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C

5

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings; E mails; Public Engagement and Consultation 
Panel

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Capital funding for Short-term assessment Unit

Contact Officer(s) details Steve Metcalf steve.metcalf@sefton.gov.uk

Page 81

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C

6

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Procurement of Advocacy Provision  
To seek approval to re-procure Advocacy Provision across 
Sefton.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 29 Jul 2021 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 24/06/2021 to 
29/07/2021.  Reason: further consideration being given to 
proposal following consultation

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Adult Social Care, Cabinet Member - Adult Social Care, 
Commissioning Support Team, Procurement Team, Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and other key stakeholders.

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings and e-mails.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Procurement of Advocacy provision

Contact Officer(s)  details Angela Clintworth angela.clintworth@sefton.gov.uk

Page 82

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C

7

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken Mental Health Issues Working Group Final Report  
To present formally the final report of the Mental Health 
Issues Working Group.

Decision Maker Cabinet

Council

Decision Expected 7 Oct 2021

18 Nov 2021 
Decision due date for Cabinet changed from 24/06/2021 to 
07/10/2021.  Reason: the Working Group is still deliberating 
on recommendations

Key Decision Criteria Financial No Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health; mental 
health social work team managers; individual service users; 
Mersey Care NHS Foundation Trust.

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings and emails.

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

Mental Health Issues Working Group Final Report

Contact Officer(s)  details Debbie Campbell debbie.campbell@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 
934 2254

Page 83

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX C

8

SEFTON METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
FORWARD PLAN

Details of Decision to be taken 0-19 Healthy Child Programme Commissioning  
Request to extend service contract due to the impacts of 
COVID-19

Decision Maker Cabinet

Decision Expected 29 Jul 2021 

Key Decision Criteria Financial Yes Community 
Impact

Yes

Exempt Report Open

Wards Affected All Wards

Scrutiny Committee Area Adult Social Care

Persons/Organisations to be 
Consulted 

Senior Leadership; Cabinet Members; Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer; Procurement; Director of Public Health; 
North West Boroughs Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

Method(s) of Consultation Meetings; Emails

List of Background Documents 
to be Considered by Decision-
maker

0-19 Healthy Child Programme Commissioning

Contact Officer(s)  details Julie Murray julie.murray@sefton.gov.uk Tel: 0151 934 
3343, Lisa Whittingham lisa.whittingham@sefton.gov.uk

Page 84

Agenda Item 10



APPENDIX D

UPDATE FROM HEALTHWATCH SEFTON FOR OSC – 22 JUNE 2021

Healthwatch Sefton is currently working on its Annual Report 2021-21 which focuses on 
how we supported and engaged local people during the pandemic. Report requirements 
state that the report has to be shared with the Secretary of State for Health by the 30th 
June.

Healthwatch Sefton continues to report on the national and local issue of access to NHS 
dental treatment. There continues to be no local dentists across the borough who are 
registering new patients and for those registered, the emerging picture that routine 
appointments which are being made are often cancelled. A report on local findings will 
be available shortly and will be distributed to committee members.

GP access is one of the areas in which patients are contacting us about. We are 
working with both NHS Southport & Formby and NHS South Sefton Clinical 
Commissioning Groups who are also looking to focus on this to avoid duplication. We 
have a project that is currently being developed with our local Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) Inspector to gather feedback to support their work and help us to monitor 
patient/carer views.

Our work to independently review Domiciliary Care which was halted by the pandemic is 
now being planned with Pippa McHaffie, Commissioning Officer from the Contracts and 
Commissioning team. There have been 2 planning meetings to date, and we hope to be 
able to finalise this project in the coming month so we can look to have conversations 
with those in receipt of this care.

Finally, following on from our online engagement event which focused on Liverpool 
University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, we have been working with 2 residents who 
have shared their recent experiences. To follow up on the themes within the report and 
the response from the trust, we have undertaken a case study sampling exercise and 
have submitted 2 lengthy case studies to the trust to show how pathways are not 
working for our residents, one also showing how the NHS 111 Pathway is not working 
as it should. 

Diane Blair BA (Hons) MSc 
Manager
0151 920 0726 ext 236

You can receive newsletters and updates by signing up here
Don’t forget our Healthwatch Sefton Signposting can help you find the right 
Health or Social care services. Call free today for independent up-to-date 
information.
Freephone:0800 206 1304 

Page 85

Agenda Item 10

https://healthwatchsefton.co.uk/get-involved/online-membership/


APPENDIX D

Healthwatch Sefton 
Sefton Council for Voluntary Service (CVS)
3rd Floor, Suite 3B
North Wing, Burlington House,
Crosby Road North, Waterloo, L22 0LG
www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk 

Page 86

Agenda Item 10

http://www.healthwatchsefton.co.uk/

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Current Challenges Faced by Dentistry in Light of the Covid 19 Pandemic
	5 Access to General Practice and NHS 111 Services During the COVID-19 Pandemic
	6 Phase 2 Clinical Integration of Haemato-Oncology Services in North Merseyside
	7 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Update Report
	8 Sefton Clinical Commissioning Groups - Health Provider Performance Dashboard
	9 Cabinet Member Reports
	Appendix A_Adult Social Care and Health
	Appendix B_Health & Wellbeing Cabinet Member Update for OS June 2021

	10 Work Programme Key Decision Forward Plan
	Appendix A_Draft_Work Prog 2021-22
	Appendix B_Terms of Reference
	Appendix C_KDFP
	Appendix D_Healthwatch Update


